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mfflions except percent data 2010 2009 2008 2007

Total revenue $933 $874 $857 $794
Gross profit $432 $394 $374 351

Gross margin 46% 45% 44% 44%
Adjusted EBITDA $236 $220 $185 $161

Adjusted EBITDA margin 25% 25% 22% 20%
Income from continuing operations 24 40 27 338

Operating cash flow $178 $186 $146 $117
Cash proceeds from asset sales 319

taIexpenditures..$2Q3$133$246$349
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Unless the context requires otherwise references to we us oui the Company and SAVVIS refer to Savvis Inc and its

subsidiaries Certain statements in this report and in other materials filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

or SEC as well as information included in oral statements or other written statements made by the Company are forward-lookthg

statements The Company intends for all such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for

forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and the provisions of

Section 2/A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These forward-looking statements

within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 may contain among others statements regarding

projections and estimates of earnings revenues cost-savings expenses capital expenditures taxes or other financial items

expectations as to results of operations and operational initiatives

expectations as to the effect of claims lawsuits commitments contingent liabilities or agreements on the Companys

financial condition results of operations or liquidity

managements plans strategies and objectives for future operations capital expenditures proposed new services and

other similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts and managements expectations as to future

performance and operations and the time by which objectives will be achieved and

future economic industry or market conditions or performance and their effect on the Companys financial condition

results of operations or liquidity

Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as believe expect anticipate project estimate

preliminary and similar expressions The Company cautions against placing undue reliance on forward-looking statements which

reflect its good faith beliefs with respect to future events and are based on information currently available to it as of the date

the forward-looking statement is made Forward-looking statements should not be read as guarantee of future performance

or results and will not necessarily be accurate indications of the timing when or by which such performance or results will be

achieved Forward-looking statements are subject to number of risks and uncertain ties and actual performance or results could

differ materially from those anticipated by any forward-looking statements The Company undertakes no obligation to update or

revise any forward-looking statement If the Company does update any forward-looking statement no inference should be drawn

that the Company will make additional updates with respect to that statement or any other forward-looking statements The

following important factors in addition to those discussed or referenced in Part Item 1A Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K may cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by any forward-looking statements

uncertainties in economic conditions including conditions that could pressure enterprise information technology spending

introduction of demand for and market acceptance of Savvis products and services

whether or not Savvis is able to sign additional outsourcing deals

variability in pricing for those products and services

merger and acquisition activity by Savvis clients or other client activity that affects the level of business done with Savvis

increasing competition including that from consolidation in the industry

rapid or unexpected evolution of technology

changes in the operating environment and

changes or proposed changes in or introduction of new regulatory schemes or environments that impact Savvis

and/or its clients businesses

The forward-looking statements con taThed in this document speak only as of the date of publication March 2011 Subsequent

events and developments may cause the Companys forward-looking statements to change and the Company will not undertake

efforts to revise those forward-looking statements to reflect events after this date

Other important assumptions and factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those Th the forward-looking

statements are specified elsewhere in this report and in the Companys other SEC reports accessible on the SECS website at

wwwsec.gov and the Companys website at wwwsavvis.net Except as specified hereth the information on the Companys website

is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Overview

We provide information technology or IT services including cloud services managed hosting managed

security colocation professional services and network services through our global infrastructure to businesses

and government agencies around the world Our services are designed to offer flexible and comprehensive

IT solution that meets the specific IT infrastructure and business needs of our clients Our suite of products can

be purchased individually in various combinations or as part of total or partial outsourcing arrangement Our
colocation solutions meet the specific needs of clients who require control of their physical assets while our

managed hosting solution offerings provide clients with access to our services and infrastructure without the

upfront capital costs associated with equipment acquisition By partnering with us our clients may drive down
the costs of acquiring and managing IT infrastructure and achieve increased operational efficiency by taking

advantage of our global monitoring application performance support and other operational support systems

and tools which allow our clients to focus their resources on their core business while we focus on the delivery

and performance of their IT infrastructure services

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1998 and began providing high speed Internet service to enterprise

clients and Internet service providers In 2004 we acquired substantially all of the assets of Cable and Wireless

USA Inc and Cable Wireless Internet Services Inc together with the assets of certain of their affiliates or

CWA With the acquisition of CWA we acquired hosting assets in 15 data centers an Internet Protocol network

global Content Delivery Network or CDN and consulting expertise that enabled us to expand the scope of

services we offer and the scale of our operations In January 2007 we completed the sale of the assets related

to our non-strategic CDN services and in June 2007 we sold the assets and assigned the lease for two data

centers in Santa Clara California to Microsoft Corporation We used the proceeds from these sales to develop

or expand data centers in the United States the United Kingdom and Singapore In June 2010 we acquired

Fusepoint Inc an independent provider of outsourced managed IT and infrastructure services to mid-market

and larger enterprises in Canada obtaining hosting assets in three data centers which are located in Toronto

Vancouver and Montreal

Our principal executive offices are located at SAVVIS Parkway Town Country Missouri 63017 and our

telephone number is 314 628-7000

Our Services

We present our revenue in two categories of services hosting services and network services

Hosting Services provide the core facilities computing including cloud services data storage security and

other infrastructure on which to run business applications We manage 32 data centers located in the North

America Europe and Asia with approximately 1.54 million square feet of gross raised floor space however

we provide managed services from 39 locations Our hosting services are comprised of colocation and

managed hosting and allow our clients to choose which parts of their IT infrastructure they own and operate

versus those that we own and operate for them Clients can scale their use of our services as their own

requirements change and as clients learn the benefits of outsourcing IT infrastructure management

Colocation is designed for clients seeking data center space and power for their server and networking

equipment needs Our data centers provide our clients around the world with secure high-powered

purpose-built location for their IT equipment

Managed Hosting Services provide fully managed solution for clients IT infrastructure and network

needs In providing our managed hosting services we deploy industry leading hardware and software

platforms that are installed in our data centers to deliver the physical or virtualized services necessary for

operating our clients applications Managed hosting services include
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Cloud Services enable significant new levels of scalability flexibility and cost efficiency for

businesses Cloud is style of computing that aligns business needs with IT capacity to drive more

efficient and effective use of clients infrastructure resources The value of virtualized infrastructure

fully automated provisioning processes security assurances in complex environments and flexible

business terms can result in lower infrastructure and maintenance costs preservation of capital

elasticity to respond to changing business needs and unanticipated load changes acceleration of

new application platforms better end-user experience and reduction of carbon footprint through

consolidation and lower energy consumption

Consulting Services are provided through our skilled personnel who assist our clients in getting

maximum value from our service offerings We offer assistance and consultation in security for

network and hosting environments virtualization web-based applications business recovery

software as service program management infrastructure and migration Our consulting services

organization assists our clients with ongoing operational support as well as assessing designing

developing implementing and managing outsourcing solutions

Dedicated Hosting provides clients with managed hosting services on hardware and software that

is isolated to single client Clients requiring dedicated infrastructure usually have either stringent

internal requirements for application performance security or data integrity or they are attempting

to become compliant with external industry or governing regulations In dedicated hosting

scenario clients are provided discrete hardware components

Utility Computing and Storage provides clients with an available secure applications platform

that delivers scalability of an entire range of IT infrastructure at lower total cost than found

with traditional service provider models We achieve this combination of lower cost and better

service through the use of virtualization technology Through our managed network we provide

connectivity between the client and the utility computing platform housed in our data centers With

our utility computing and storage solution our clients pay only for the services they currently need

while maintaining the ability to scale up or down the services to meet their changing business needs

Managed Security Services provide global around-the-clock monitoring and management of

security appliances software and network-based controls and incident response for our managed

hosting and network services clients We utilize our advanced network tools to detect and filter

malicious traffic before it reaches our clients infrastructures in addition to providing virtualized

security services using industry-standard virtualization technology in our data centers to reduce

the need for our clients to pay for dedicated security equipment

Network Services are comprised of our managed network services including managed VPN hosting area

network or HAN and bandwidth services

Managed VPN service is fully managed end-to-end solution that includes hardware management

systems and operations to transport an enterprises voice video and data applications at corresponding

quality-of-service levels whether those applications are housed at our clients site or in our data centers

Clients that purchase this service are generally geographically dispersed enterprises seeking to transmit

latency-sensitive data more cost effectively in secure environment among their multiple locations

around the world

Hosting Area Network is dedicated network that provides secure high speed Internet connectivity

for hosting and cloud clients located in our data centers along with value-added services such as load

balancing and network-based firewalls

Bandwidth Services are provided to enterprises and wholesale carrier clients We offer Tier Internet

services in North America Europe and Asia that are managed unmanaged or integrated with our VPN

In addition we offer carrier diversity by enabling connectivity either to Internet providers built into

our data centers or to providers in carrier hotels that are connected to our data centers by our metro

Ethernet rings
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Our Segments

We manage our business based on two reportable service-based segments hosting and network
Hosting services consist of colocation and managed hosting services and provide the core facilities

computing data storage and network infrastructure on which to run business applications Network
services are comprised of managed network services hosting area network application transport and
bandwidth services Management evaluates the performance of the two segments primarily based on
revenue and adjusted EBITDA Financial information regarding each of our reportable segments is included

in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in

Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Industry Trends

The IT capabilities for many businesses have often been viewed as competitive advantages in the

past however many businesses now recognize that while their IT infrastructure is important it no
longer provides strategic or financial advantage As result the IT strategy for many businesses has

been increasingly focused on efforts to reduce costs improve responsiveness to changing business

environment and focus internal resources on projects that deliver competitive advantages As the core

functions of IT such as data storage processing and transport have become commonplace throughout
all industries these functions have become routine and increasingly thought of as simply costs of doing
business Many businesses are also recognizing the high cost and inefficiency of managing IT infrastructure

themselves including the difficulties of upgrading technology training and retaining skilled personnel

with domain expertise and matching IT costs with actual benefits Given these continuing trends in IT

strategy budget constraints and inefficient use of resources businesses often look to outsource significant

parts of their IT functions to trusted partners so they can focus on the areas that still provide competitive

advantages such as client or industry-specific applications

Most businesses today will consider outsourcing when reviewing their IT strategies however traditional

outsourcing approaches such as colocation do not often provide meaningful strategic operational or

financial benefits as many outsourcers simply operate clients infrastructure without fundamentally

changing or updating the underlying technology or the way the infrastructure is managed or in cases where
holistic outsourcing agreements are in place businesses lose control of differentiating IT applications For

example an outsourcer may run the clients current IT systems more efficiently but because they use legacy

technology the client will likely not achieve the benefits of an operating infrastructure utilizing the latest

technology hardware software and IT research and development

We believe that businesses are moving away from long term locked-in full scale IT outsourcing due to

newer types of services available that allow clients greater economies and increased mid-term flexibility

As result we focus on developing and delivering services that allow clients more flexibility We provide

broad range of infrastructure and consultative services that enable clients to improve the quality and
lower the cost of their IT operations and increase the availability and flexibility of their IT systems In

addition our solution may allow our clients to have visibility and control of their application performance
while shifting our clients from corporate model based on large capital investments for buying
maintaining and depreciating IT assets to pay-as-you-go service model that allows clients to scale their

IT infrastructure up or down as their business requirements change Our approach enables us to be
flexible and scalable partner to our clients that can provide tailored end-to-end IT infrastructure solutions

on demand

Our Strategy

We focus on providing complex highly secure highly available high performance services to business

enterprises providing value through technology solutions and proactive service that enables these

enterprises to gain competitive advantage through their IT infrastructure Because of our global

infrastructure management systems and business model we have the unique capability to deliver fully

managed and integrated IT solutions to enterprises with offices around the world Our key growth
strategies include the following
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Target the right clients We specifically target clients that we believe will receive the most economic

value from using our services Many mid-sized businesses have traditionally outsourced single IT service

offerings such as network services or hosting services and have continued to own and manage portions

of their IT infrastructure themselves We believe that these businesses can lower the overall cost of

their IT operations while improving the quality of their IT systems by purchasing our managed services

and outsourcing the majority of their IT services rather than single IT service Additionally we target

large enterprises that wish to outsource specific components of their IT infrastructure or applications

In particular we focus on such clients in the financial services industry We believe that pursuing these

clients will allow us to increase revenues and profitability as these clients purchase our higher margin

services while at the same time reducing their overall IT costs

Offer targeted business solutions to solve specific clients needs We develop market and deliver

solutions designed to satisfy the needs of our targeted clients These end-to-end solutions are

comprised primarily of our technical capabilities and our consulting services which may encompass

third party services Examples of our solutions include proximity hosting for the financial industry

software as service enablement services for the independent software vendor and software provider

industry and test and development solutions for companies looking to outsource their software testing

and development infrastructure Our client focused solutions allow us to offer more compelling value

propositions to targeted client segments

Deliver compelling and comprehensive technical capabilities Our broad integrated comprehensive

offering of IT services allows us to act as full service provider to our clients We offer full range of

solutions including hosting cloud computing storage applications network and security services

Our full service orientation creates incremental revenue growth as clients seek to minimize the number

of outside vendors and demand one-stop service providers Additionally we can meet clients

increasing IT demands through scalable solutions

Leverage our data centers and global network and take advantage of expansion opportunities

We currently operate 32 data centers around the world and offer our services at an additional leased

locations which we expect will provide us with significant operating leverage as we increase the amount

of our revenue that is derived from managed services By acquiring new managed services clients and

migrating our existing clients that purchase only colocation or network services to purchasing our

higher value managed services we expect to be able to increase the revenues we derive from these data

centers In 2009 we began the expansion of our hosting facility located in Weehawken New Jersey

which will add approximately 105000 square feet of gross raised floor space over years approximately

35000 of which has been completed to date in 2010 we expanded data centers in Chicago Illinois

Washington D.C and London In 2011 we intend to continue expansions in targeted markets to enable

further revenue growth in addition to leveraging our agreements with Thomson Reuters and Bharti Airtel

to offer our services in their existing data centers

Our Infrastructure

We provide our services through our global infrastructure that includes

32 Data Centers in North America Europe and Asia with approximately 1.54 million square feet of gross

raised floor space with managed services offered at an additional leased locations

Tier OC-192 Internet Backbone with over 17000 miles of fiber under RU agreements and

Operations Support System or OSS which provides automated provisioning end-to-end management

and integration with commercial element management systems

We utilize virtualization and automation technologies to leverage our global infrastructure which allows us

to offer our services as part of total outsourcing solution or on utility or as-needed basis By applying

virtualization technology to our servers storage security and network devices we are able to offer clients

connected to our network access to suite of services without the client having to purchase install and

configure equipment and network services and with the ability to easily scale the infrastructure to meet

evolving client requirements
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For information regarding our revenue and long-lived assets by geographic region please refer to

Note 20 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Clients

We currently provide services to clients across all industries including the financial services media and

entertainment software and government sectors No single client accounted for more than 10% of our

revenue during 2010 however 27% of our revenue for 2010 was generated by clients in the financial services

industry and 8% of that by our largest client Thomson Reuters Clients in the government sector did not

account for material percentage of our total revenue during 2010

Our contracts with our clients are typically for one to three years in length Many of our client contracts

contain service level agreements that provide for service credits if we fail to maintain defined and specific

quality levels of service

Sales and Marketing

We reach potential new clients and sell new services to our existing clients through our direct sales force

indirect sales channels and marketing programs

Direct Sales and Consultation We have approximately 122 sales representatives that work directly with

potential new and existing clients Our direct sales force uses solution selling approach to understand

clients IT infrastructure requirements Since we tend to serve more complex environments and clients we
frequently employ consultative methods in order to win clients An example is our Savvis Transformation

Workshop where we work with potential clients to understand their current environment and issues then

design and propose solutions to these issues By seeking detail on their applications and long term IT goals

combined with our years of experience we are able to provide thought leadership and display high levels

of competence and dependability to our potential clients All direct sales representatives take part in an

extensive training program designed to develop in-depth consultative selling skills

Indirect Sales We market our products and solutions through various indirect channels including

collaborations with existing clients and technology providers telecommunications companies and system

integrators By working with these companies we have opened new avenues for growth and see potential

for significant opportunities to further enhance revenue growth through these types of relationships as we
have with our largest client Thomson Reuters The Thomson Reuters sales force is processing orders for

our solutions in ten data centers and we have their Elektron Hosting solution available in six of our own
data centers in addition to five other global data centers locations in which we have rented existing space
to manage this solution We have also recently entered into marketing agreement with Bharti Airtel in

which we will provide our managed services from Bharti Airtels data centers located in India We use these

partnerships to expand our existing presence in countries in which we currently do business as well as way
to expand into new markets

Marketing We are business-to-business company whose marketing programs are targeted at information

technology executives as well as line of business and finance executives We use marketing campaigns to

increase brand awareness generate leads accelerate the sales process retain existing clients and promote
new products to existing and prospective clients We participate in industry conferences and trade shows
We use direct mail e-newsletters surveys Internet marketing on-line and on-site seminars collateral

materials and welcome kits to communicate with existing clients and to reach potential new clients Our

employees author and publish articles about industry trends and our services Additionally we work closely

with industry analysts and the press so that they understand and can communicate the value of our services

Competition

Prospective clients for our infrastructure solutions often weigh the advantages of outsourcing to service

provider against their ability to manage IT infrastructure internally In those instances the in-house solution is

source of competition By offering complete range of services that can be scaled up or down as needed
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and utilizing the latest technology hardware software and IT research and development we compete by

providing meaningful strategic operational or financial benefits that enable clients to improve the quality

and lower the cost of their IT operations

Our external competitors range from very large telecommunications companies hardware manufacturers

and system integrators that support the in-house IT operations for business or offer outsourcing solutions

to smaller point solutions companies that sell individual IT services or solutions to selected industries

Telecommunications companies such as ATT Inc Verizon Communications Inc BT and Level

Communications have used their legacy voice and data business to expand into hosting and network

services System integrators like IBM HP/EDS Accenture and CSC focus on long-term systems integration

projects and outsourcing contracts that include hiring large portion of the clients staff Due to the size of

these companies they may be able to offer more inexpensive solutions to clients however we feel we are

able to successfully compete against these larger companies by offering tailored IT solutions that target

specific clients such as mid-size enterprise businesses or specific client segments such as the financial

services industry

Other external competitors focus on one part of IT infrastructure service such as colocation managed

hosting cloud or Internet access This category includes companies such as Equinix Inc Rackspace Hosting

Inc Terremark Worldwide Inc and Internap Network Services Corporation Also vendors such as Microsoft

Corporation Oracle and Saleforce.com focus on delivering their proprietary software and application

offerings as hosted service or in some cases offer other hosted solutions into the market Some

competitors including GoGrid and Amazon.com Inc focus on delivering cloud computing and software

as service to enterprise clients We feel we are able to successfully compete with these competitors by

offering broad integrated comprehensive offering of IT services our vendor neutral application strategy

and our ability to provide clients high level of client service in global one-stop target solution

For further information on our competitive strategy please refer to the Our Strategy section of Part Item

Business included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Regulatory Matters

The following section describes material laws and regulatory developments that we believe are currently

applicable to our business It does not cover all present or pending federal state local or foreign regulations

affecting the communications industry

U.S Regulatory Matters

Most of our existing services are not currently regulated by the Federal Communications Commission

or FCC or any other government agency of the United States or public utility commissions of the

individual states other than regulations that apply to businesses generally although our private line

service is generally regulated by the FCC as telecommunications service As implemented by rules

policies and precedents issued by the FCC the Telecommunications Act of 1996 regulates the provision

of telecommunications services and generally exempts information services and non-common carrier

services from its regulation We believe that many of the products and services we offer whether on

facilities or resale basis generally qualify as information services or non-common carrier services and are

therefore not subject to federal regulation However in light of ongoing FCC proceedings and developing

FCC case law it is possible that some or all of the information services that we provide should or will

become subject to certain regulatory requirements

As service provider to insured financial institutions we are subject to the provisions of the Bank Service

Company Act which subjects the service provider to regulation administrative jurisdiction and examination

by the federal banking regulators with respect to the performance of services to insured depository

institutions These provisions have not had material effect on our operations or expenses Additionally

future legislation may potentially subject us to expanded regulation with respect to broader class of clients

and with respect to range and severity of regulatory actions to which we are exposed
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International Regulatory Matters

Our principal markets outside the United States include countries in North America South America Europe
and Asia As is true in the United States the market for our services in each of the major economies within

these regions is open to foreign competition We believe that we are authorized to provide our services under

the applicable regulations in all countries where we derive substantial business In certain countries throughout

Asia Latin America the Middle East and Africa regulatory and market access barriers including foreign

ownership limitations and entrenched monopolies may require us to partner with local providers to provide

certain services to our client or may prevent us from providing services directly to clients As our business plan

does not contemplate selling significant amount of services in such countries in the near term we do not

believe that our inability to offer services directly to clients in these countries will impact us significantly

Intellectual Property

We have number of United States and international patents protecting aspects of our technology and
we are currently pursuing additional patent applications in the United States and internationally We have

registered trademarks for our business name and several product and service names and marketing slogans
In addition we have applied for trademark protection for various products services and marketing slogans
We have also registered various Internet domain names in connection with the SAVVIS public website

Although we consider our intellectual property rights to be valuable we do not believe that the expiration of

any single patent service mark or trademark would materially affect our consolidated results of operations

Employees

As of December 31 2010 we employed 2440 full-time persons of which 1306 were engaged in engineering

global operations and client service 235 in product development and product engineering 598 in sales sales

support product management and marketing and 301 in finance and administration None of our employees
are represented by labor union We believe our relationship with our employees is good

Executive Officers of the Company

Set forth below are the names ages as of March 2011 and current positions of our executive officers

Name Age Title
_____________-_________________

James Ousley 65 Chief Executive Officer

Peter Bazil 38 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Bryan Doerr 47 Chief Technology Officer

William Fathers 42 President

Gregory Freiberg 43 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Paul Hott 39 Vice President Human Resources

James Mon 55 Senior Vice President Americas Sales

Jeffrey Von Deylen 47 Senior Vice President Global Operations and Client Services

Set forth below is brief description of the principal occupation and business experience of each of our

executive officers

James Ousley has served as our Chief Executive Officer since March 2010 From January 2010 to

March 2010 he had served as our interim Chief Executive Officer Mr Ousley has also served as our

Chairman of the Board of Directors since May 2006 and as director of our company since April 2002
Prior to holding the position of Chief Executive Officer Mr Ousley also served as member of the boards

audit compensation and business development committees Mr Ousley served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Vytek Corporation from 2001 until April 2004 From 1999 to 2002
Mr Ousley also served as chairman Chief Executive Officer and President of Syntegra Inc USA division

of British Telecommunications From September 1991 to August 1999 Mr Ousley served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Control Data Systems Mr Ousley serves on the board of Datalink Inc Mr Ousley

received B.S degree from the University of Nebraska
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PeterJ Bazil has served as our Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since July 2010 From 2007

to July 2010 Mr Bazil was our Vice President Associate General Counsel Mr Bazil joined our Company
in 2003 as an Associate General Counsel and served in that role from 2003 to 2007 Prior to joining our

Company Mr Bazil had served as Associate General Counsel for WAMNet Inc since 2000 Mr Bazil received

his B.A in Economics from the University of California-Berkeley and holds J.D from the Pepperdine

University School of Law

Bryan Doerr has served as our Chief Technology Officer since October 2003 From February 2002 to

October 2003 Mr Doerr was our Vice President Software Development Prior to this Mr Doerr held several

positions in management software technology research and software development at Bridge Information

Systems Inc The Boeing Company and Johns Hopkins University Applied Physics Laboratory Mr Doerr

received his B.S in Electrical Engineering from the University of Missouri M.S degree in Electrical

Engineering from Johns Hopkins University and Masters in Information Management from Washington

University in St Louis Missouri

William Fathers was appointed President of our Company on February 24 2011 Mr Fathers had

previously served as our Senior Vice President Global Sales and Marketing since November 2009 prior

to this as our Senior Vice President Managing Director U.S since August 2008 and prior to that as our

Senior Vice President Engineering and Development since April 2007 Prior to joining us Mr Fathers was

Global Head of Development for Reuters Limited from April 2005 to April 2007 From September 2003

to April 2005 Mr Fathers was Senior Vice President within Reuters Global Business Development team

and was responsible for several major acquisition and post acquisition integration programs within the

financial services market From 2001 to 2003 Mr Fathers held other senior technology positions within

Reuters Limited Prior to joining Reuters Limited Mr Fathers was senior consultant at telecom and

media consultancy company PA Consulting Group and he served as an officer in the British Armed Forces

He received Masters degree in Engineering from Cambridge University

Gregory Freiberg has served as our Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer since April 2009 Prior to

joining us Mr Freiberg served as the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for XO Holdings Inc and

XO Communications LLC from April 2006 to April 2009 and as Vice President of Finance and Controller from

June 2005 to April 2006 Prior to joining XO Communications Inc Mr Freiberg held positions as Senior Vice

President of Finance with Asia Netcom and Asia Global Crossing from 2002 to 2005 Mr Freiberg has served

on the board of directors for joint ventures in Hong Kong Japan the Philippines and Singapore Mr Freiberg

received B.S degree in Business Administration from the University of South Dakota holds CPA certificate

from the State of Nebraska and served in the U.S Army National Guard from 1986 to 1995

Paul Hott has served as our Vice President Human Resources since November 2009 Mr Hott had

previously served as Vice President Talent Acquisition and Development since joining our company in

January 2007 Prior to joining us Mr Hott was Senior Director Human Resources at The Solae Company
from 2005 to 2007 From 2002 to 2005 Mr Hott held the positions of Senior Vice President Leadership

and Coaching Skill Development and Vice President Learning and Organization Effectiveness at Bank of

America Prior to this he held various management positions at GE Capital Fleet Services and The Pillsbury

Company Mr Hott received B.S degree in Political Science and M.B.A from the University of Iowa

James Mon has served as our Senior Vice President Americas Sales since March 2010 and prior to that

as our Senior Vice President Global Client Services since March 2008 Mr Mon served as our Senior Vice

President Client Services from November 2007 to March 2008 and prior to this as our Managing Director

Americas since joining our company in October 1999 Previously Mr Mon served as Area Vice President for

Sprint Corporation and in various other sales leadership positions with Sprint Corporation prior to that time

Mr Mon received B.S degree in Business Administration from the University of Missouri

Jeffrey Von Deylen has served as our Senior Vice President Global Operations and Client Services since

October 2008 Prior to that Mr Von Deylen served as our Chief Financial Officer from March 2003 to

April 2009 and as director of our company from March 2003 to May 2009 Prior to joining our company
Mr Von Deylen held several financial positions at American Electric Power Company Qwest Communications

International LCI International Arthur Anderson and in Europe with Global Telesystems Inc and KPNQwest

N.V Mr Von Deylen received B.S degree in Accountancy from Miami University
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Available Information

Our Internet site is at http//www.savvis.net We are not including the information contained on our website
as part of or incorporating it by reference into this filing We make available to the public on our website
free of charge our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-a Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or
furnished to the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission or SEC Our reports filed with or furnished to
the SEC may be read and copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington DC
20549 Investors may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC
at 1-800-SEC-0330 These filings are also available on the SECs website at http//www.sec.gov

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below in addition to all other information provided to you
in this document Any of the following risks could materially and adversely affect our business results of

operations or financial condition The risks and uncertainties described below are those that we currently
believe may materially affect our company Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of or that

we currently deem immaterial also may become important factors that affect our company

Risks Related to Our Business

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly which makes our future results difficult to predict and
may cause our operating results to fall below expectations

We incurred net losses of $54.0 million $20.8 million and $22.0 million for the years ended December 31
2010 2009 and 2008 respectively and we may incur net losses in the future We may also have fluctuations

in revenues expenses and losses due to number of factors many of which are beyond our control

including the following

demand for and market acceptance of our hosting and network products

our ability to retain key employees that maintain relationships with our clients

the duration of the sales cycle for our services

changes in clients budgets for information technology purchases and in the timing

of their purchasing decisions

the announcement or introduction of new or enhanced services by our competitors

acquisitions and dispositions we may make

our ability to implement internal systems for reporting order processing purchasing billing

and general accounting among other functions

our ability to meet performance standards under our agreements with our clients

changes in the prices we pay for utilities local access connections Internet connectivity

and longhaul backbone connections

the timing and magnitude of capital expenditures including costs relating to the expansion

of operations and of the replacement or upgrade of our network and hosting infrastructure and

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

Accordingly our results of operations for any period may not be comparable to the results of operations for

any other period and should not be relied upon as indications of future performance

Demand for our services is vulnerable to economic downturns If general economic conditions weaken
then our revenues and our financial condition may materially decline
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We are vulnerable to general downturns in the domestic and international economies Demand for our

services may decrease if our clients face deterioration of their businesses or decide to delay capital spending

out of uncertainty regarding the future In addition our clients may find it more difficult to raise capital in

the future due to substantial limitations on the availability of credit and may be forced to delay upgrades to

their IT infrastructure Furthermore our clients may demand better pricing terms and their ability to timely

pay our invoices may be affected by weakened economy deterioration of the economy could also result

in number of our clients facing bankruptcy As result clients may reduce the services they purchase from

us merge with competitors or enter into bankruptcy any of which could adversely affect our revenues If the

economy weakens then our revenues and overall financial condition may be adversely affected

We operate in rapidly evolving industry which makes our future operating results difficult to predict

We operate in an industry characterized by rapid technological innovation changing client needs evolving

industry standards and frequent introductions of new products and services Our success depends on our

ability to implement managed network and cloud services that anticipate and respond to rapid and continuing

changes in technology industry developments and client needs As we encounter new client requirements

and increasing competitive pressures we will likely be required to modify enhance reposition or introduce

new solutions and service offerings We may not be successful in doing so in timely cost-effective and

appropriately responsive manner or at all All of these factors make it difficult to predict our future operating

results which may impair our ability to manage our business and our investors ability to assess our prospects

Our failure to meet performance standards under our client contracts could result in our clients terminating

their relationships with us or our clients being entitled to receive financial compensation which could lead

to reduced revenues

Our agreements with our clients contain various guarantees regarding our performance and our levels of service

If we fail to provide the levels of service or performance required by our agreements our clients may be able to

receive service credits for their accounts and other financial compensation as well as terminate their relationship

with us In addition any inability to meet our service level commitments or other performance standards could

reduce the confidence of our clients and could consequently impair our ability to obtain and retain clients which

would adversely affect both our ability to generate revenues and our operating results

We depend on number of third-party providers and the loss of or problems with one or more of these

providers may cause financial losses impede our growth or cause us to lose clients

We are dependent on third-party providers to supply products and services For example we lease or

otherwise procure equipment from equipment providers bandwidth capacity from telecommunications

network providers in the quantities and quality we require data center space from third party landlords power

services from local utilities and other energy suppliers and we source equipment maintenance through third

parties While we have entered into various agreements for equipment carrier line capacity data center space

power services and maintenance any failure to obtain equipment additional capacity or space power services

or maintenance if required would impede the growth of our business harm our reputation and cause our

financial results to suffer The equipment that we purchase could be deficient in some way thereby affecting

our products and services Our clients that use the equipment and facilities we lease or the services of these

telecommunication providers may in the future experience difficulties due to failures unrelated to our systems

Additionally any one of these third-party providers could suffer financial failure and as result become

incapable of supplying products and services to us If for any reason these providers fail to provide the

required services to us or our clients or suffer other failures we may incur financial losses and our clients may

lose confidence in our company and we may not be able to retain these clients

Our indebtedness could limit our ability to operate our business successfully

As of December 31 2010 the carrying amount of our debt including capital and financing method lease

obligations was $765.0 million of which $2.9 million represented the book value of our $3.1 million convertible

notes due in May 2012 and $533.3 million represented the book value of the $548.6 million remaining principal

outstanding on our term loan In addition we expect from time to time to continue to incur additional
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indebtedness and other liabilities in the future If we incur additional indebtedness or if we use more cash
than we generate in the future then the possibility that we may not have cash sufficient to pay when due the

outstanding amount of our indebtedness will increase If we do not have sufficient cash available to repay our
debt obligations when they mature we will have to refinance such obligations or we could be in default under

the terms of our debt obligations and there can be no assurance that we will be successful in such refinancing

or that the terms of any refinancing will be acceptable to us This also means that we will need to dedicate

substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to the payment of our indebtedness reducing the funds

available for operations working capital capital expenditures sales and marketing initiatives acquisitions

and general corporate or other purposes Our debt agreements also contain covenants that among other

things restrict our ability to incur more debt pay dividends and make distributions make certain investments
repurchase stock create liens enter into transactions with affiliates make capital expenditures merge or

consolidate and transfer or sell assets without obtaining the approval of the lender In addition some of our
debt agreements contain financial covenants that require us to maintain certain financial ratios and minimum
performance levels Our ability to comply with these provisions may be affected by events beyond our control

Failure to comply with these covenants could result in an event of default which if not cured or waived could

trigger cross-defaults and acceleration of repayment obligations

We may not be able to secure additional financing on favorable terms to meet our future capital needs

If we do not have sufficient cash flow from our operations we may need to raise additional funds through

equity or debt financings in the future in order to meet our operating and capital needs We may not be

able to secure additional debt or equity financing on favorable terms or at all at the time when we need
such funding If we are unable to raise additional funds we may not be able to pursue our growth strategy
and our business could suffer If we raise additional funds through further issuances of equity or convertible
debt securities our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution in their percentage ownership of

our company and any new equity securities we issue could have rights preferences and privileges senior to

those of holders of our common stock In addition any debt financing that we may secure in the future could

have restrictive covenants relating to our capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters
which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities

including potential acquisitions Furthermore if we decide to raise funds through debt or convertible debt

financings we may be unable to meet our interest or principal payments

We may make acquisitions or enter into joint ventures strategic alliances or exclusivity agreements each of
which is accompanied by inherent risks

If appropriate opportunities present themselves we may make acquisitions or investments or enter into joint

ventures strategic alliances or exclusivity agreements with other companies Risks commonly encountered in

such transactions include

the difficulty of assimilating the operations and personnel of the combined companies

the risk that we may not be able to integrate the acquired services products or technologies with our

current services products and technologies

the potential disruption of our ongoing business

the diversion of management attention from our existing business

the inability to retain key technical and managerial personnel

the inability of management to maximize our financial and strategic position through the successful

integration of acquired businesses

difficulty in maintaining controls procedures and policies

the impairment of relationships with employees suppliers and clients as result of any integration

the loss of an acquired or existing base of clients and accompanying revenue

the assumption of leased facilities or other long-term commitments or the assumptions of unknown

liabilities that could have material adverse impact on our profitability and cash flow and

dilution to our stockholders
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As result of these potential problems and risks businesses that we may acquire or invest in may not

produce the revenue earnings or business synergies that we anticipated These potential problems and risks

may have an adverse impact on both our ability to provide services to our clients and our relationships with

our clients In addition we cannot be assured that any potential transaction will be successfully identified

and completed or that if completed the acquired businesses or investment will generate sufficient revenue

to offset the associated costs or other potential harmful effects on our business

Our increasing use of strategic alliances could expose us to risks not present where we operate without

such relationships

We believe that in certain circumstances our business can be benefitted by establishing relationships with

strategic partners and we have entered into strategic alliances and exclusivity agreements to market

and sell our services and may continue to do so in the future In such relationships we are typically

relying on these partners to market our brand and if our partners do not meet contractual commitments

with clients or are unable to provide necessary services Savvis brand may be negatively impacted

which could lead to loss of existing clients and an inability to attract new clients Where we rely on

strategic alliance partners to support our operations in particular country or region we may experience

operational problems attributable to the installation implementation integration performance features

or functionality of software systems or services which could result in sustained equipment failure leading

to claims for service credits under our service level guarantees and ultimately loss of business While

acting on our behalf our partners may also violate applicable laws or regulations to which we are subject

including the U.S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or relevant foreign statutes Such violations may result in

audits investigations litigation penalties or fines which could have significant impact on our financial

condition or prohibitions on doing business in certain countries or with governments including the U.S

government which could limit our growth opportunities

material reduction in revenue from our largest client or the loss of other key clients could harm our financial

results to the extent not offset by cost reductions or additional revenue from new or other existing clients

Thomson Reuters accounted for approximately 7% of our revenue in 2008 and 2009 and approximately

8% of our revenue in 2010 Investment companies banks and other financial services companies excluding

Thomson Reuters accounted for approximately 19% of our revenue in 2008 2009 and 2010 The loss of

Thomson Reuters or any of our other key clients including our clients in the financial sector due to the

acquisition of such clients their financial failure or bankruptcy adverse economic or other reasons or

considerable reduction in the amount of our services that these clients purchase could materially reduce our

revenues which to the extent not offset by cost reductions or revenue from new or other existing clients

could materially reduce our cash flows and adversely affect our financial position This may limit our ability to

raise capital or fund our operations working capital needs and capital expenditures in the future

Bidding for and obtaining contracts to provide services to government and quasi-government entities

imposes restrictions and costs on our business not present in our non-government client contracts

We have sought and plan to continue to seek to provide our services to governments and government

agencies including the U.S government Bidding for government contracts can involve costs not present

in seeking non-government contracts such as costs associated with obtaining various levels of security

clearances in compliance with applicable requirements If we are not successful in obtaining sufficient

revenue from government contracts to offset these costs our ability to generate profit could suffer

If we are able to contract to provide services to government or government agency we may not be

able to do so on favorable terms and doing so may subject us to otherwise inapplicable regulation Such

contracts are typically subject to more onerous conditions than our contracts with non-government clients

including limited durations profit pricing and cost controls modification or termination without cost

and on short or no notice In some cases such contracts are subject to the contracting agency or entity

obtaining appropriations or funding which may not materialize Breach of government contract terms or

applicable regulations and requirements could lead to contract modification or termination the assessment

of penalties and fines and/or suspension or debarment from government contracting or subcontracting for
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period of time or permanently which could adversely affect our business and results of operations For

contracts involving classified information any breach of security could make us ineligible to work on any
future classified programs and subject us to penalties and fines which could negatively impact our results of

operations or financial condition

Our operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to maintain peering arrangements with

Internet Service Providers on favorable terms

We enter into peering agreements with Internet Service Providers throughout our market which allow us to

access the Internet and exchange traffic transparently with these providers Previously many providers agreed

to exchange traffic without charging each other However some providers that previously offered peering

transparency have reduced peering relationships or are seeking to impose charges for transit especially for

unbalanced traffic offered and received by us with these peering partners For example several network

operators with large numbers of individual users claim that they should be able to charge network operators
and businesses that send traffic to those users Additionally actions by government and regulatory authorities

to adopt rules that would govern agreements we have with Internet Service Providers or other network

operators including those with respect to net neutrality could impair or limit our ability to manage our network

resources Increases in costs associated with Internet and exchange traffic could have an adverse effect on our

business If we are not able to maintain our peering relationships on favorable terms we may not be able to

provide our clients with affordable services which would adversely affect our results from operations

Failures in our products or services including our network hosting and colocation services could disrupt

our ability to provide services increase our capital costs result in loss of clients or otherwise negatively

affect our business

Our ability to implement our business plan successfully depends upon our ability to provide high quality

reliable services Interruptions in our ability to provide our services to our clients or failures in our products

or services through the occurrence of natural disaster human error component or system failure extreme

temperature or other unanticipated problem could adversely affect our clients businesses and our business

and reputation Additionally expansions and developments in the products and services that we offer

including in particular advanced offerings such as cloud services could increasingly add measure of

complexity that may overburden our data center and network resources and human capital making service

interruptions or failures more likely For example problems at one or more of our data center facilities

could result in service interruptions or failures or could cause significant equipment damage In addition

our network could be subject to unauthorized access computer viruses and other disruptive problems

caused by clients employees or others Unauthorized access computer viruses or other disruptive problems

could lead to interruptions delays or cessation of service to our clients In addition we may be unable to

implement disaster recovery or security measures in timely manner if and when implemented these

measures may not be sufficient or could be circumvented through the reoccurrence of natural disaster

or other unanticipated problem or as result of accidental or intentional actions Resolving network

failures or alleviating security problems may also require interruptions delays or cessation of service to our

clients Accordingly failures in our products and services including problems at our data centers network

interruptions or breaches of security on our network may result in significant liability penalties loss of

clients and damage to our reputation

Our operations may be harmed and we could be subject to regulatory penalties and litigation if our

network security is breached by unauthorized third parties

If unauthorized third parties breach the security measures on our network we could be subject to liability

and could face reduced client confidence in our services Unauthorized access could also potentially

jeopardize the security of confidential information of our clients or our clients end-users which might

expose us to liability from clients and the government agencies that regulate us including under an

increasing number of information security and privacy laws as well as deter potential clients from purchasing

our services Any internal or external breach in our network could severely harm our business and result in

costly litigation and potential liability for us Although we attempt to limit these risks contractually there

can be no assurance that we will limit the risk or avoid incurring financial penalties To the extent our clients
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demand that we accept unlimited liability and to the extent there is competitive trend to accept it such

trend could affect our ability to retain these limitations in our contracts at the risk of losing the business

Increased energy costs power outages and limited availability of electrical resources may adversely affect

our operating results

Our data centers are susceptible to regional costs and supply of power and electrical power outages We

attempt to limit exposure to system downtime by using backup generators and power supplies However

we may not be able to limit our exposure entirely even with these protections in place In addition our

energy costs can fluctuate significantly or increase for variety of reasons including increased pressure on

legislators to pass green legislation As energy costs increase we may not always be able to pass on the

increased costs of energy to our clients which could harm our business Power and cooling requirements

at our data centers are also increasing as result of the increasing power demands of todays servers Since

we rely on third parties to provide our data centers with power sufficient to meet our clients power needs

our data centers could have limited or inadequate amount of electrical resources Our clients demand

for power may also exceed the power capacity in our older data centers which may limit our ability to fully

utilize these data centers This could adversely affect our relationships with our clients and hinder our ability

to run our data centers which could harm our business

Concerns about the environmental impacts of greenhouse gas emissions and the global climate change

may result in environmental taxes charges regulatory schemes assessments or penalties which could

restrict or negatively impact our operations or reduce our profitability

The impacts of human activity on global climate change have attracted considerable public and scientific

attention as well as the attention of the United States and other governments Efforts are being made to

reduce greenhouse emissions and energy consumption including those from coal combustion by power

plants We rely on power from these power plants and the added cost of any environmental regulation

taxes charges assessments or penalties levied or imposed on these power plants could be passed on to us

increasing the cost to run our data centers and reducing our profitability There are number of state and

federal legislative and environmental regulatory initiatives as well as those internationally that could restrict

or negatively impact our operations or increase our energy costs Additionally environmental regulation

taxes charges assessments or penalties could be levied or imposed directly on us Any enactment of laws or

passage of regulations regarding greenhouse gas emissions by the United States or any domestic or foreign

jurisdiction we perform business in could adversely effect our operations and financial results

If we are unable to recruit or retain qualified personnel our business could be harmed

We must continue to identify hire train and retain IT professionals technical engineers operations

employees and sales and senior management personnel who maintain relationships with our clients and

who can provide the technical strategic and marketing skills required for our company to grow There is

shortage of qualified personnel in these fields and we compete with other companies for the limited pool

of these personnel The failure to recruit and retain necessary technical managerial sales and marketing

personnel including but not limited to members of our executive team could harm our business and our

ability to grow our company

Our failure to implement our growth strategy successfully could harm our business

Our growth strategy includes increasing revenue from our managed hosting colocation and network

services We seek to sell managed hosting colocation and network services to our clients thereby

strengthening the client relationship While initially clients may only purchase one or two services we believe

that once the client sees the benefit of our infrastructure offerings to their business they will purchase

additional services We have developed new data center capabilities as part of our growth strategy If we do

not have sufficient client demand in the markets to support the new data centers we have built our financial

results may be harmed There is no assurance that we will be able to implement these initiatives in timely

or cost effective manner and this failure to implement our growth strategy could cause our operations and

financial results to be negatively affected
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We have agreed to certain indemnification obligations which if we are required to perform may negatively

affect our operations

In connection with our sale of the assets related to our content delivery network we agreed to indemnify

the purchaser for certain losses that it may incur due to breach of our representations and warranties If we
are required to perform such obligations should they arise any actions we are required to take or payments
we are required to make could harm our operations and prevent us from being able to engage in favorable

business activities consummate strategic acquisitions or otherwise fund capital needs

We may be liable for the material that content providers distribute over our network

The law relating to the liability of private network operators for information carried on stored or

disseminated through their networks is still unsettled We may become subject to legal claims relating to

the content disseminated on our network For example lawsuits may be brought against us claiming that

material on our network on which someone relied was inaccurate Claims could also involve matters such

as defamation invasion of privacy and copyright infringement If we need to take costly measures to reduce

our exposure to these risks or are required to defend ourselves against such claims our financial results

could be negatively affected

Difficulties presented by international economic political legal accounting tax and business factors could

harm our business in international markets

For the year ended December 31 2010 21% of our total revenue was generated in countries outside of the

United States Some risks inherent in conducting business internationally include

regulatory tax licensing political or other business restrictions or requirements

longer payment cycles and problems collecting accounts receivable

uncertain regulations

fluctuations in currency exchange rates

our ability to secure and maintain the necessary physical and telecommunications infrastructure

challenges in staffing and managing foreign operations and

more restrictive laws or regulations or more restrictive interpretations of existing laws or regulations

such as those related to content distributed over the Internet

Any one or more of these factors could adversely affect our business

Our inability to renew our data center leases or renew on favorable terms could have negative impact on
our financial results

All of our data centers are leased and have lease terms that expire between 2011 and 2031 The majority

of these leases provide us with the opportunity to renew the lease at our option for periods generally

ranging from five to ten years Many of these options however if renewed provide that rent for the renewal

period will be equal to the fair market rental rate at the time of renewal If the fair market rental rates are

significantly higher than our current rental rates we may be unable to offset these costs by charging more
for our services which could have negative impact on our financial results Additionally the terms of

renewal may cause different accounting treatment for lease which could cause changes to our total debt

position and have an adverse impact on our reported financial position or debt covenants Also it is possible

that landlord may insist on other financially unfavorable renewal terms or where no further option to renew

exists elect not to renew all together

Our right to undisturbed use of our leased data centers may be challenged if our landlords lenders exercise

their rights due to our landlords default on their debt

We lease the land and buildings which support our data centers Continued economic degradation may
negatively impact and create greater pressure in the commercial real estate market causing higher incidences
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of landlord default or lender foreclosure of properties including perhaps the properties which support our

data centers While in most cases we maintain certain non-disturbance rights it is not certain that such rights

will in all cases be upheld thereby jeopardizing our continued right of occupancy in such instances

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights

We rely upon combination of internal and external nondisclosure safeguards including confidentiality

agreements as well as trade secret and other intellectual property laws and vehicles to protect our

proprietary rights We cannot however assure that the steps taken by us in this regard will be adequate to

deter misappropriation of proprietary information or that we will be able to detect unauthorized use and

take appropriate steps to enforce our intellectual property rights We also are subject to the risk of litigation

alleging infringement of third-party intellectual property rights Any such claims could require us to spend

significant sums in litigation pay damages develop non-infringing intellectual property or acquire licenses to

the intellectual property that is the subject of the alleged infringement

Our investment portfolio is subject to market fluctuations which may affect our liquidity

Historically we have invested in AAA-rated U.S government agencies AAA-rated money market funds

meeting certain criteria and Al/Pi rated commercial paper The market value of these investments may

decline due to general credit liquidity market interest rate and issuer default risks which subject us to the

risk of declines in the market values of our investments in the future that could result in an adverse impact on

our financial condition and operating results

Risks Related to Our Industry

The markets for our hosting network and professional services are highly competitive and we may not be

able to compete effectively

The markets for our hosting network and professional services are extremely competitive We expect that

competition will intensify in the future and we may not have the financial resources technical expertise

sales and marketing abilities or support capabilities to compete successfully in these markets Many of our

current and potential competitors have longer operating histories greater name recognition access to larger

client bases and greater market presence lower costs of capital and greater engineering and marketing

capabilities and financial technological and personnel resources than we do As result as compared to us

our competitors may

develop and expand their networking infrastructures and service offerings more efficiently or more quickly

adapt more rapidly to new or emerging technologies and changes in client requirements

take advantage of acquisitions and other opportunities more effectively

develop products and services that are superior to ours or have greater market acceptance

adopt more aggressive pricing policies and devote greater resources to the promotion marketing sale

research and development of their products and services

make more attractive price and performance offers to our existing and potential employees

establish cooperative relationships with each other or with third parties and

take advantage of existing relationships with clients more effectively or exploit their more widely

recognized brand name to market and sell their services

Recent industry consolidation may increase the competitive advantages noted above If we are unable to

compete effectively this could result in an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition

If the markets for outsourced information technology services decline there may be insufficient demand

for our services and as result our business strategy and objectives may fail
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Our solutions are designed to enable client to focus on its core business while we manage and ensure the

quality of its information technology or IT infrastructure Businesses may believe the risk of outsourcing is

greater than the risk of managing their IT operations themselves If businesses do not continue to recognize

the high cost and inefficiency of managing IT themselves including the difficulties of upgrading technology

training and retaining skilled personnel with domain expertise and matching IT cost with actual benefits

they may not continue to outsource their IT infrastructure to companies within our industry Additionally

outsourcing may be associated with larger companies such as HP and IBM and we may not be as successful

as these companies As result of these risks our business may suffer and it could adversely affect our

business strategy and objectives and our ability to generate revenues

Our failure to achieve desired price levels could affect our ability to achieve profitability or positive cash flow

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience pricing pressure for some of the services that we
offer Prices for Internet services have decreased in recent years and may decline in the future Colocation

prices have stabilized throughout the past year however this stabilization may be challenged in the future as

large wholesale vendors enter the enterprise colocation market In addition by bundling their services and

reducing the overall cost of their services telecommunications companies that compete with us may be able

to provide clients with reduced communications costs in connection with their hosting data networking or

Internet access services thereby significantly increasing pricing pressure on us We may not be able to offset

the effects of any such price reductions even with an increase in the number of our clients higher revenues

from enhanced services cost reductions or otherwise In addition we believe that the data networking and

VPN and Internet access and hosting industries are likely to continue to encounter consolidation which could

result in greater efficiencies in the future Increased price competition or consolidation in these markets

could result in erosion of our revenues and operating margins and could have negative impact on our

profitability Furthermore larger consolidated telecommunications providers have indicated that they want
to start billing companies delivering services over the Internet premium charge for priority access to

connected clients If these providers are able to charge companies such as us for this our costs will increase

and this could affect our results of operations

New technologies could displace our services or render them obsolete

New technologies or industry standards including those technologies protected by intellectual property

rights have the potential to replace or provide lower cost alternatives to our hosting networking and

Internet access services The adoption of such new technologies or industry standards could render our data

center technology and services obsolete unmarketable cause impairment of our existing assets or require

us to incur significant capital expenditures to expand and upgrade our technology to meet new standards

In addition government regulation may adversely affect the demand for hosting services We cannot

guarantee that we will be able to identify new service opportunities successfully or if identified be able to

develop and bring new products and services to market in timely and cost-effective manner In addition

we cannot guarantee that services or technologies developed by others will not render our current and
future services non-competitive or obsolete or that our current and future services will achieve or sustain

market acceptance or be able to effectively address the compatibility and interoperability issues raised by

technological changes or new industry standards If we fail to anticipate the emergence of or obtain access

to new technology or industry standard we may incur increased costs if we seek to use those technologies

and standards or our competitors that use such technologies and standards may use them more cost-

effectively than we do

The data networking and Internet access industries are highly regulated in many of the countries in which

we currently operate or plan to provide services which could restrict our ability to conduct business in the

United States and internationally

We are subject to varying degrees of regulation in each of the jurisdictions in which we provide services

Local laws and regulations and their interpretation and enforcement differ significantly among those

jurisdictions and can change significantly over time Future regulatory judicial and legislative changes
or interpretations may have material adverse effect on our ability to deliver services within various

jurisdictions For example the European Union enacted data retention system that once implemented

by individual member states will involve requirements to retain certain IP data that could have an impact
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on our operations in Europe Moreover national regulatory frameworks that are consistent with the policies

and requirements of the World Trade Organization have only recently been or are still being put in place in

many countries Accordingly many countries are still in the early stages of providing for and adapting to

liberalized telecommunications market As result in these markets we may encounter more protracted and

difficult procedures to obtain licenses

Within the United States the government continues to evaluate the data networking and Internet access

industries The Federal Communications Commission has number of on-going proceedings that could

affect our ability to provide services or to charge certain fees Such regulations and policies may complicate

or make more costly or less profitable our efforts to provide services in the future Additionally changing

regulations or regulatory interpretations may cause regulated providers to increase the costs of certain

services that we purchase Our operations are dependent on licenses and authorizations from governmental

authorities in many of the foreign jurisdictions in which we operate or plan to operate and with respect to

limited number of our services in the United States These licenses and authorizations generally will contain

clauses pursuant to which we may be fined or our license may be revoked on short notice Consequently

we may not be able to obtain or retain the licenses necessary for our operations or be able to retain these

licenses at costs which allow us to compete effectively

number of our clients are banks brokerage firms investment managers operators of exchanges or trading

systems and other participants in the financial services industry As service provider to some of these

entities we currently are subject to regulation and examination by regulatory authorities with jurisdiction

over our clients and could in the future become subject to further requirements Future legislation could

subject us to expanded regulation if enacted More aggressive use of current regulatory powers or the

implementation of new regulatory regimes could increase our operating costs subject us to potential

penalties or affect our ability to continue serving the financial services market In addition securities trading

operations of some securities firms involving placing servers or leasing server space in the same location at

or proximate to exchange facilities have drawn increased public and regulatory scrutiny and are among the

subjects of broad review of equity market structure recently announced by the United States Securities

and Exchange Commission Rulemaking that arises from that review or otherwise could affect the cost

attractiveness or permissibility of certain of our services in ways that we cannot currently predict but that

may have an adverse affect on our business revenue and profitability

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Sales of significant amount of our common stock in the public market could reduce our stock price or

impair our ability to raise funds in new stock offerings

We have approximately 57.0 million shares of common stock outstanding the majority of which is held

by small number of investment firms including Welsh Carson Anderson Stowe or Welsh Carson As

of February 23 2011 investment partnerships sponsored by Welsh Carson own approximately 18% of our

outstanding common stock and since December 2006 Welsh Carson has distributed over 17.1 million shares

of our common stock to its limited partners These shares may and some have been sold in the public market

immediately following such distributions Also as of February 23 2011 Welsh Carson and individuals affiliated

with Welsh Carson are entitled to certain registration rights with respect to 14.2 million shares of our common

stock held by them Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common stock in the public market including

sales following Welsh Carson distributions or the perception that either of those sales will occur could cause

the market price of our common stock to decline Those sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell

equity and equity-related securities in the future at time and at price that we consider appropriate

Our stock price is subject to significant volatility

Since February 2010 until the present the closing price per share of our common stock has ranged from

high of $36.29 per share to low of $14.09 per share Our stock price has been and may continue to

be subject to significant volatility due to conditions in the technology industry or in the financial markets

generally sales of our securities by significant stockholders and the other risks and uncertainties described

or incorporated by reference herein
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Our certificate of incorporation and Delaware law contain provisions that could discourage takeover

Our certificate of incorporation and Delaware law contain provisions which may make it more difficult for

third party to acquire us including provisions that give the Board of Directors the power to issue shares of

preferred stock We have also chosen to be subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law
which subject to certain exceptions prevents stockholder of more than 15% of companys voting stock

from entering into business combinations set forth under Section 203 with that company

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

As of the filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K there were no unresolved comments from the Staff of

the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

ITEM PROPERTIES

As of December 31 2010 we leased 65 facilities occupying approximately 3.2 million square feet of gross
floor space worldwide for our corporate offices sales and administrative offices warehouses network

equipment and data centers This includes the 32 data centers that we currently operate worldwide with

approximately 1.54 million square feet of gross raised floor space The locations and approximate square

footage of these facilities by major geographic areas of the world are as follows in thousands

Gross Square Feet

of Office Space

and Warehouse Soace

Gross Square Feet Gross Square Feet

Geographic Area of Hosting Space of Network Space
North America 332 2276 159

Europe Middle East and Africa 49 332

Asia 19 40

Worldwide Total 400 2648 167

We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our current needs and that suitable additional or

alternative space will be available in the future to meet our anticipated needs

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to various legal proceedings and actions arising in the normal course of our business While

the results of all such proceedings and actions cannot be predicted management believes based on facts

known to management today that the ultimate outcome of all such proceedings and actions will not have

material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operation or cash flows

ITEM REMOVED AND RESERVED
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock $0.01 par value per share is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the

symbol SVVS The following table lists on per share basis for the periods indicated the high and low

closing sale prices for the common stock as reported by NASDAQ

Quarter Ended High Low

March 31 2010 17.98 $14.09

June 30 2010 20.00 14.75

September 30 2010 22.00 14.84

December 31 2010 27.80 19.18

March 31 2009 8.48 5.09

June 30 2009 14.26 6.14

September 30 2009 17.94 9.96

December 31 2009 18.02 12.52

Holders of the Corporations Capital Stock

As of February 23 2011 there were approximately 547 holders of record of our common stock

Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception We do not

intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future We anticipate we will retain any

earnings for use in our operations and expansion of our business In addition we are restricted from paying

dividends by the terms of our financing arrangements

For information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans please refer

to Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

There were no issuer purchases of equity securities in the fourth quarter of 2010

Stockholder Return Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or to

be filed with the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission nor shall such information be incorporated by

reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934 each as

amended except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with the

cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and market weighted indexes of publicly traded

peers The returns are calculated by assuming an investment of $100 in our common stock and in each

index on December 31 2005 The peer group in the graph that we refer to as the old peer group or

Old Peer Group is specially constructed group that we used prior to this year for comparative purposes

The publicly traded companies included in this group are Equinix Inc Internap Network Services Corp
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Switch Data Facilities Company and Terremark Worldwide Inc Switch Data Facilities Company was

acquired by Equinix Inc in 2010 and we believe this change has made the Old Peer Group less relevant for

comparative purposes We have accordingly adopted new composite peer group index or the New Peer

Group replacing Switch Data Facilities Company with Rackspace Hosting Inc and Telecity Group We
believe this new composite index provides representative sample of the companies in the primary lines of

business in which we engage and the locations in which we engage in those lines of business and therefore

provides better basis for performance comparisons than the old peer group

Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Return
Among SAVVIS Inc the NASDAQ Composite Index New Peer Group and an Old Peer Group

$350

300

250

200

150

100

50

SAVVIS Inc NASDAQ composite New Peer Group Old Peer Group

$100 invested on 12/31/05 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December 31

The points on the graph represent the following numbers

December 31

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

SAVVIS Inc $100.00 317.42 $248.09 61.24 $124.89 $226.84

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 111.74 124.67 73.77 107.12 125.93

New Peer Group 100.00 209.47 230.76 113.84 271.04 303.28

Old Peer Group 100.00 209.47 230.76 118.11 232.21 207.90

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

2008 2007 and 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007

and 2006 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes to

the financial statements Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for

future periods The following selected consolidated financial data for the years ended December 31 2010

2009 and 2008 and as of December 31 2010 and 2009 should be read in conjunction with and are

qualified by reference to Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Other Financial Data

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities34

Net cash provided by used in

financing

Cash dividends per share.....

dollars in thousands December 31

2010 2009 2008 20071 2006

Balance Sheet Data

Property and equipment net4 843801 783852 736646 616584 284437

Total assets 1183650 1024758 949695 888274 467019

Long-term debt6 530649 376089 360249 285002 269436

Capital and financing method

lease obligations 216508 223897 191419 162054 114991

Other long-term obligations 74937 76452 71588 59182 82941

Stockholders equity deficit 186129 209817 200177 216748 138335

The significant changes in 2007 reflect the impact of gains on sale of certain data center assets of $180.5 million in

June 2007 and CDN assets of $125.2 million in January 2007 and the impact of the loss on debt extinguishment of

$45.1 million in June 2007 related to our subordinated notes

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 and 2006 the effects of including the incremental shares associated

with options warrants unvested restricted stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock are anti-dilutive and are not

included in the diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding In addition all common share information reflects

the one-for-fifteen reverse stock split that occurred on June 2006
The significant increase in 2010 is result of the $112.8 million acquisition of Fusepoint Inc net of cash received

The significant increase in 2007 is result of $225.8 million spent for the development or expansion of ten data centers

which were opened during 2007 and 2008 The significant increase in 2010 is result of $49.9 million spent for the expansion

of four data centers and the $23.7 million of assets acquired in the acquisition of Fusepoint Inc

The significant increase in 2010 is primarily the result of $110.0 million in borrowings to finance the acquisition of Fusepoint Inc

The significant increase in 2008 is result of $47.9 million proceeds from borrowings on our Lombard loan agreement

and $13.2 million in accretion on our convertible notes The significant increase in 2010 is result of an additional

$110.0 million in borrowings to finance the acquisition of Fusepoint Inc in addition to the $14.2 million net impact of

debt refinancing transaction

dollars in thousands except share data Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 20071

$932984 874414

24490 40067

Statement of Operations Data

Total revenue

Income from continuing operations

Income loss from continuing

operations net of income taxes

Income from discontinued operations

net of income taxes

Net income loss

Basic income loss per common share2

Diluted income loss per common share2

2006

857041 793833

26533 338000

54020 20846 21966 242875

20846
0.39

0.39

21966
0.41

0.41

61

53959
0.98

0.98

177741

313885

99190

763971

25450

43958

43958
9.54

9.54

118701

87092

8433

186481 145558

132936 246166

242875

4.61

4.51

117347

29424

390314473 48062
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OPERATIONS

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is provided

in addition to the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto to assist readers in

understanding our results of operations financial condition and cash flows The following discussion contains

in addition to historical information forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 or the Act that involve risks and uncertainties including those set forth in

Part Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K and in subsequent United States Securities and Exchange
Commission filings These forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Act may contain among
others statements regarding projections and estimatesj expectations and managements plans strategies and

objectives which should not be read as guarantee of future performance or results and will not necessarily be
accurate indications of the timing when or by which such performance or results will be achieved Forward

looking statements are typicaliy identified by words or phrases such as believe expect ànticioate oroject
estimate orelimThary and similar expressions We caution against placing undue reliance on forward-looking

statements which reflect our good faith beliefs with respect to future events and are based on information

currently available to us as of the date the forward-looking statement is made You should read the following

discussion together with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes to those financial

statements that are included in Part Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on page 58

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview

We provide information technology or IT services including cloud services managed hosting managed
security colocation professional and consultative services and network services through our global

infrastructure to businesses and government agencies around the world Our services are designed to

offer flexible and comprehensive IT solution that meets the specific IT infrastructure and business needs

of our clients Our suite of products can be purchased individually in various combinations or as part of

total or partial outsourcing arrangement Our colocation solutions meet the specific needs of clients

who require control of their physical assets while our managed hosting solution offerings provide clients

with access to our services and infrastructure without the upfront capital costs associated with equipment

acquisition By partnering with us our clients may drive down the costs of acquiring and managing IT

infrastructure and achieve increased operational efficiency by taking advantage of our global monitoring

application performance support and other operational support systems and tools which allow our clients

to focus their resources on their core business while we focus on the delivery and performance of their IT

infrastructure services

Significant trends for the year ended December 31 2010 included hosting revenue growth of 11% over the

year ended December 31 2009 and revenue from the financial services industry of $252.7 million 10%

increase over the year ended December 31 2009 Our cloud revenue for the year ended December 31 2010

was $15.2 million an increase of 106% over the year ended December 31 2009 As part of our strategic

plan to expand our geographic presence around the world we acquired hosting provider in strategic

market for $121.8 million in cash in June 2010 In August we restructured our debt profile and closed on our

senior secured credit facilities which include $550.0 million term loan and $75.0 million revolving credit

facility The proceeds were used to fund tender offer on our 3% senior convertible notes along with the

repayment of other bank and vendor financing

For further information on our business and services please refer to Part Item of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K

Business Trends and OutIook

To the extent that the global economic outlook begins to stabilize and improve we believe that companies
would increasingly consider adopting outsourced IT solutions as they focus on reducing their infrastructure
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and personnel spending while working to meet the increasing demands from their user communities We

believe we have considerable opportunity as our services model enables our enterprise clients to choose

from number of different strategies designed to reduce their IT costs Our focus is to provide mission-

critical non-discretionary IT infrastructure outsourcing and we believe that our target client base considers

us specialists in the areas of server management storage virtualization security and network infrastructure

With the completion in 2008 of significant phase of our global data center expansion and additional

expansion in key markets in 2010 and 2011 we believe we have the right footprint operational plan and

functionality in place to provide our clients with the products and services they need at the locations where

they need it Additionally with our recent acquisition of Fusepoint Inc we have expanded our global

footprint into Canada We continue to work with our existing clients to understand their business needs and

related geographic and product extension opportunities We believe that the pursuit of this understanding

will foster stronger mutually beneficial relationships with our clients We are also evaluating and entering into

strategic alliances and marketing agreements which allows us to extend our product offerings and enter new

geographic markets with lower upfront costs of entry Two examples include our agreement with Thomson

Reuters which provides managed hosting and network solutions to Thomson Reuters clients through our

data centers and our marketing agreement with Bharti Airtel in which we will provide our managed services

from Bharti Airtels data centers located in India

The center point of our strategy is to grow our hosting business through our managed hosting service

offerings We believe that we can show clients that we can decrease their costs by moving towards our

managed hosting solutions for their IT needs While colocation and network services play an important and

foundational role we remain intensely focused on growing our managed hosting business specifically in our

new offerings such as cloud services In 2009 we launched the first of our cloud service offerings and in the

second quarter of 2010 launched our advanced virtual private data center for cloud services In the fourth

quarter of 2009 we experienced revenue decreases from non-core below-market margin colocation clients

including certain of those in the internet content business In 2010 the colocation market has improved

however we anticipate pricing challenges as wholesale vendors enter the enterprise colocation market

Additionally we have increased our focus on our network services and have started to see stabilization in

that segment of our business while continuing to provide an integrated managed hosting and managed

network solution particularly in hosted applications requiring higher network performance characteristics

however we do expect certain of our network products to continue to experience pricing pressure

Based on current economic conditions and demand for our services we will also continue to remain

focused on initiatives that we believe will continue to improve and grow our business including

Increasing the quality of our infrastructure and the reliability of our services

through additional investments in systems

Improving efficiencies in our services and support and our general and administrative areas

through process and productivity improvements

Expanding data center space to support growth in our hosting products and services

Investing in cloud platforms and services

Increasing client satisfaction through our delivery of differentiated services as reflected

in responses to our client satisfaction surveys and

Exploring options for acquisitions divestitures and strategic alliances that facilitate the

achievement of our business objectives

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Discontinued Operations

In our June 16 2010 acquisition of Fusepoint Inc or Fusepoint we acquired Fusepoints application

services business or FAS which we did not consider core to our future operations and subsequently sold on

December 13 2010 for $1.5 million of cash proceeds FAS which was part of our hosting segment provides

service from two locations 1ontreaI and Quebec City both of which provide clients with the design
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development integration and maintenance of mission critical e-business applications We recognized gain of
$0.1 million on the sale of FAS in the year ended December 31 2010 which was primarily related to the excess
of cash proceeds received over the net book value No gains or losses on the fair value were recorded on our
financial statements prior to the sale as FAS was recorded through acquisition accounting at its estimated fair

value The results of operations for FAS have been classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated
statements of operations and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31 2010

Debt Refinancing

On August 2010 we entered into senior secured credit facilities consisting of $550.0 million six-year
term loan facility or the Term Loan and $75.0 million three-and-a-half-year revolving credit facility or
the Revolver with group of lenders for which Banc of America Securities LLC and Morgan Stanley Senior
Funding Inc served as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners and Credit Suisse Securities USA LLC
and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey Inc served as arrangers and joint bookrunners The proceeds of the Term
Loan were used together with cash on hand to repay existing indebtedness including the $336.0 million

principal and $2.2 million interest paid on tendered convertible notes the $110.0 million outstanding on the
Companys existing revolving credit facility which was terminated with an additional $1.5 million in interest
and fees $16.9 million principal and $0.1 million interest on the loan agreement with Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation or Cisco and $11.2 million of the $13.1 million outstanding on the lease agreements with Cisco
plus an additional $0.2 million in fees the 35.0 million or approximately $55.8 million outstanding on the
loan agreement with Lombard North Central Plc or Lombard and the 2.0 million or approximately
$3.2 million settlement of the interest rate swap related to the loan agreement with Lombard The Term
Loan requires 0.25% quarterly principal amortization payments beginning December 31 2010 with the
remaining balance payable on the maturity date August 2016 There was 3.0% or $16.5 million original
issue discount associated with the Term Loan which will be recognized as interest expense over the term
of the loan The Revolver contains $40.0 million letter of credit provision and can be used to fund working
capital for capital expenditures and other general corporate purchases

Tender Offer

On July 2010 we commenced tender offer to purchase any and all of our outstanding 3.0% Convertible
Senior Notes or the Notes due May 15 2012 for an amount in cash equal to $990 per $1000 principal
amount of the Notes validly tendered and accepted for purchase plus accrued and unpaid interest up to
but not including the date of purchase The tender offer expired August 2010 and we purchased 98.4%
of the $345.0 million outstanding principal amount of the Notes or $339.4 million for $336.0 million An
additional $2.2 million was paid for accrued and unpaid interest On September 14 2010 at $990 per $1000
principal amount we purchased and extinguished $2.5 million of the remaining outstanding principal amount
of the Notes for $2.5 million including accrued and unpaid interest As of December 31 2010 $3.1 million

principal amount of the Notes remained outstanding As result of both transactions we recognized loss
on debt extinguishment of $4.3 million which represents the $2.5 million unamortized debt issuance costs
related to the extinguished Notes the $1.4 million difference between the fair value attributed to the liability

component and the carrying value of the Notes at extinguishment and the $0.4 million fees paid to third

parties for the facilitation of the transactions

Fusepoint Acquisition

On June 16 2010 we completed our acquisition of Fusepoint Inc or Fusepoint Fusepoint was an
independent provider of outsourced managed IT and infrastructure services to mid-market and larger
enterprises in Canada With the acquisition of Fusepoint we obtained hosting assets in three data centers
which are located in Toronto Vancouver and Montreal We acquired Fusepoint for $121.8 million in cash after

adjustment for estimated working capital and debt levels At the closing $12.5 million of the purchase price
was placed in escrow for possible application against this working capital adjustment certain tax liabilities

and indemnification claims that may be made in the first year following closing We funded the acquisition

through available cash on hand and the assumption of an additional $110.0 million of debt through the
utilization of increased borrowing capacity under the Credit Agreement which was amended and upsized
to $150.0 million as described above The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method
of accounting Acquisition and integration related costs of $5.1 million were included in our consolidated
statements of operations for the year ended December 31 2010
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Option Exchange

In May 2009 pursuant to plan approved by the stockholders at the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders

we offered our employees the opportunity to exchange some or all of their outstanding stock options

with an exercise price per share greater than $17.85 and granted prior to May 29 2008 whether vested

or unvested for lesser number of stock options with an exercise price equal to the closing price of our

common stock on the date of grant of the new options Eligible employees tendered and we accepted for

cancellation an aggregate of approximately 4.0 million shares of common stock representing approximately

93.3% of the eligible options On June 29 2009 we granted approximately 3.0 million new options and

cancelled the tendered eligible options

Data Center Development and Expansion

During the year ended December 31 2008 we spent $225.8 million for the development of ten new data

centers that were opened as part of global data center expansion plan In addition we commenced six

operating leases for data centers that were opened in 2007 and 2008 In total these new and expanded

data centers added approximately 323000 feet of gross raised floor space and enabled us to sell

additional colocation and managed hosting services In July 2009 we entered into 20 year operating lease

agreement for data center space which will expand our hosting facility located in Weehawken New Jersey by

approximately 0.1 million square feet of raised floor space In December 2009 we signed lease agreement

to assume additional space and extend the term of an existing operating lease related to data center located

in Chicago Illinois which changed the classification of the existing operating lease to capital lease In 2010

we expanded our existing data centers located in Washington D.C and London and in December 2010 signed

16 year lease agreement to expand our data center facility in Piscataway New Jersey

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The historical financial information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not intended to represent

the consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows that may be achieved in the future

Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2009

Executive Summary of Consolidated Results of Operations

Revenue increased $58.6 million or 7% for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to the year ended

December 31 2009 primarily as result of an 11% increase in hosting revenue which was partially offset by

3% decrease in network services revenue Income from continuing operations decreased $15.6 million to

$24.5 million for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to income from continuing operations of

$40.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 primarily due to increases in depreciation and other

operating expenses Loss from continuing operations before income taxes for the year ended December 31

2010 was $55.0 million compared to $18.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009

The following table presents revenue and operating costs by category dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2009 Dollar Change Percent Change2010

Revenue

Colocation $358390 $341321 $17069 5%

Managed hosting 314962 265975 48987 18%

Total hosting 673352 607296 66056 11%

Network services 259632 267118 7486 3%
Total revenue 932984 874414 58570 7%

Cost of revenue 500749 480335 20414 4%
Selling general and

administrative expenses 226842 203158 23684 12%

Excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which is reported separately
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Revenue Revenue was $933.0 million for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $58.6 million
or 7% from $874.4 million for the year ended December 31 2009 Revenue for the year ended December
31 2009 included $8.9 million of non-recurring termination fees and $12.8 million of revenue from the
American Stock Exchange or AMEX client which was acquired by the New York Stock Exchange and
subsequently cancelled its service with us in 2009 Total hosting revenue was $673.4 million for the year
ended December 31 2010 an increase of $66.1 million from $607.3 million for the year ended December
31 2009 The increase was driven by $49.0 million increase in managed hosting revenue which included
$9.2 million of incremental revenue resulting from our acquisition of Fusepoint The growth in managed
hosting revenue was moderated by the loss of $10.0 million in revenue from AMEX and $6.1 million in other
one-time early termination fees in the year ended December 31 2009 Offsetting this revenue loss was net

growth of $55.9 million which reflected growth in our dedicated hosting storage and professional services

products Colocation revenue increased $17.1 million for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

the year ended December 31 2009 which included $9.9 million of incremental revenue resulting from our
acquisition of Fusepoint Organically we experienced $7.7 million increase in colocation revenue Network
services revenue was $259.6 million for the year ended December 31 2010 decrease of $7.5 million or

3% from $267.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 Included in network services revenue for the

year ended December 31 2009 was approximately $2.3 million of non-recurring revenue from AMEX The
remaining $5.2 million decrease in network revenue was primarily due to wholesale bandwidth client churn

Cost of revenue Cost of revenue includes costs of facility rentals utilities circuit costs and other operating
costs for hosting space third party costs associated with installing clients in our data centers costs of

leasing local access lines to connect clients to our Points of Presence or PoPs leasing backbone circuits

to interconnect our PoPs indefeasible rights of use operations and maintenance and salaries and related

benefits for engineering service delivery and provisioning client service consulting services and operations

personnel who maintain our network monitor network performance resolve service issues and install new
sites Cost of revenue excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which is reported as separate
line item of operating expenses and includes non-cash equity-based compensation Cost of revenue was
$500.7 million for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $20.4 million or 4% from $480.3 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 This increase included $11.2 million of incremental costs resulting
from our acquisition of Fusepoint of which $0.7 million were integration costs The remaining $9.2 million

increase was primarily driven by $6.7 million increase in software maintenance costs $5.2 million increase
in third-party contractors to support hosting revenue growth and $0.4 million increase in non-cash equity-
based compensation cost partially offset by $3.3 million decrease in client related costs related to the
decrease in network revenue Cost of revenue as percentage of revenue decreased to 54% for the year
ended December 31 2010 compared to 55% for the year ended December 31 2009

Sales general and administrative expenses Sales general and administrative expenses include sales and
marketing salaries and related benefits product management pricing and support salaries and related

benefits sales commissions and referral payments advertising direct marketing and trade show costs

occupancy costs executive financial legal tax and administrative support personnel and related costs
professional services including legal accounting tax and consulting services and bad debt expense
It excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which is reported as separate line item of operating
expenses and includes non-cash equity-based compensation Sales general and administrative expenses
were $226.8 million for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $23.7 million or 12% from

$203.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 This increase included $4.9 million of incremental
costs resulting from our acquisition of Fusepoint of which $1.5 million were integration costs The remaining
$18.8 million increase was primarily driven by $14.0 million increase in people costs primarily related to

increased headcount and higher commissions on improved sales performance in addition to increased
bonus costs on an improvement in overall company performance and $3.2 million increase in marketing
and legal costs Sales general and administrative expenses as percentage of revenue were 24% for the year
ended December 31 2010 compared to 23% for the year ended December 31 2009

Depreciation amortization and accretion Depreciation amortization and accretion expense consists

primarily of the depreciation of property and equipment amortization of intangible assets and accretion

related to the aging of the discounted present value of certain liabilities and unfavorable long-term
fixed price contracts assumed in acquisitions Depreciation amortization and accretion expense was
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$180.9 million for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $30.0 million or 20% from $150.9 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 This increase included $7.6 million in depreciation on tangible assets

acquired with our acquisition of Fusepoint along with amortization of the acquired intangible assets The

remaining $22.4 million increase was due to the addition of new data centers and other capital expenditures

of $32.9 million which was partially offset by an $8.7 million decrease in depreciation due to certain assets

becoming fully depreciated and $1.8 million decrease in depreciation due to foreign currency impact from

assets in our international regions

Loss on debt extinguishment Loss on debt extinguishment was $8.7 million for the year ended December 31

2010 This represents the loss incurred with the refinancing of our long-term debt as described in the

Significant Events section of this document and consisted of $6.1 million unamortized deferred financing

costs $1.4 million loss representing the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the Notes

and $1.2 million in costs primarily related to bank and legal fees

Other income and expense Other income and expense represents interest on our long-term debt interest on

our capital and financing lease obligations certain other non-operating charges and interest income on our

invested cash balances Other income and expense was $70.8 million for the year ended December 31 2010

an increase of $12.6 million or 22% from $58.2 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The $9.6 million

increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31 2010 was primarily due to $6.0 million increase

in interest due to debt refinancing that occurred in August 2010 and $4.8 million of interest related to the

expansion of an existing data center in Chicago which resulted in the reclassification of the lease to capital

lease Interest income decreased $0.1 million due to lower average interest rates and lower average daily cash

balances invested during the year ended December 31 2010 Other expense increased $2.9 million primarily

due to the settlement of our interest rate swap during the year ended December 31 2010

The following table presents an overview of the components of net interest expense and other

dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2C10 2009 Dollar Change Percent Change

Other income and expense

Interestexpense $67571 $57976 $9595 17%

Interest income 126 226 100 44%

Other income expense 3325 434 2891 666%

Total other income and expense $70770 $58184 $12586 22%

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes Loss from continuing operations before income

taxes for the year ended December 31 2010 was $55.0 million decline of $36.9 million from loss from

continuing operations before income taxes of $18.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009

Income tax benefit expense Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31 2010 was $1.0 million

compared to income tax expense of $2.7 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The $3.7 million

improvement was due to tax benefit generated from Fusepoint operations in addition to the expectation

of lower alternative minimum tax liability in 2010

Loss from continuing operations net of income taxes Loss from continuing operations net of income

taxes for the year ended December 31 2010 was $54.0 million decline of $33.2 million from loss from

continuing operations net of income taxes of $20.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009 driven

by the factors previously described

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes Income from discontinued operations net of

income taxes was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31 2010 This represents the gain from the

sale of our applications services business acquired in our acquisition of Fusepoint Inc which was sold in

December 2010

Net loss Net loss for the year ended December 31 2010 was $54.0 million decline of $33.2 million from

net loss of $20.8 million for the December 31 2009 driven by the factors previously described
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Segment Information

Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The discussion of our results of operations by segment presented below includes references to and analysis

of our segment adjusted EBITDA results Adjusted EBITDA represents income from continuing operations
before depreciation amortization and accretion and non-cash equity-based compensation Adjusted
EBITDA is reconciled below to its most comparable measure income from continuing operations Adjusted
EBITDA is further reconciled to loss from continuing operations before income taxes in Note 20 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K We use adjusted EBITDA
as performance measure to evaluate our segments because we believe that such information is relevant

measure of companys operating financial performance and liquidity in our industry The calculation of

adjusted EBITDA is not specified by United States generally accepted accounting principles As such our
calculation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies

The following table presents revenue and adjusted EBITDA by segment and excludes the results of our

discontinued operations dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

____________________________________ 2010 2009 Dollar Change Percent Change
Revenue

Hosting

Network

Total revenue

Adjusted EBITDA

Hosting 261259 $239290 21969
Network 65743 67610 1867
Corporate other 95931 86877 9054

Total adjusted EBITDA 231071 $220023 11048

11%

3%
7%

9%

3%
10%

5%

Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation

Income from continuing operations 24490 40067
Depreciation amortization

and accretion 180903 150854
Non-cash equity-based compensation 25678 29102

Adjusted EBITDA $231071 $220023

includes all costs not directly associated with hosting services or network services including $5.1 million acquisition and
integration costs in the year ended December 31 2010

Revenue

Hosting Revenue from our hosting segment was $673.4 million for the year ended December 31 2010
an increase of $66.1 million from $607.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The increase was
driven by $49.0 million increase in managed hosting revenue which included $9.2 million of incremental

revenue resulting from our acquisition of Fusepoint During the year ended December 31 2009 we recorded

approximately $6.1 million of non-recurring termination fees and approximately $10.0 million of revenue from

AMEX Offsetting this prior year non-recurring revenue was net growth of $55.9 million which reflected

growth in our dedicated hosting storage and professional services products Colocation revenue increased

$17.1 million for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to the year ended December 31 2009 and
included $9.9 million of incremental revenue from our acquisition of Fusepoint Organically we experienced

$7.7 million increase in colocation revenue

Network Network services revenue was $259.6 million for the year ended December 31 2010 decrease

of $7.5 million or 3% from $267.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 Included in network

services revenue for the year ended December 31 2009 was approximately $2.3 million of non-recurring

revenue from AMEX The remaining $5.2 million decrease in network revenue was primarily due to wholesale

bandwidth client churn

673352

259632

$932984

607296

267118

874414

$66056

7486
$58570
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Adjusted EBTDA

Hosting Adjusted EBITDA for our hosting segment was $261.3 million for the year ended December 31 2010

an increase of $22.0 million or 9% from $239.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 which included

$11.8 million of non-recurring termination fee revenue which had no associated costs The increase was

driven by $66.1 million increase in revenue partially offset by $44.1 million increase in costs Costs directly

associated with our hosting segment include the costs of facility rentals utilities circuit costs and other

operating costs for hosting space and the salaries and related benefits for personnel directly or indirectly

associated with our hosting services The $44.1 million increase in costs was primarily driven by an additional

$15.6 million of costs for increased headcount and third party contractors to support increased managed

hosting revenue and $13.4 million increase in sales and marketing expense on higher commissions and

expanded marketing efforts for hosting products Additionally software maintenance costs increased

$6.3 million primarily due to new business which resulted in increased license usage Segment adjusted

EBITDA as percentage of segment revenue was 39% for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Network Adjusted EBITDA for our network segment was $65.7 million for the year ended December 31 2010

and $67.6 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The decrease was driven by the revenue decline

of $7.5 million which was primarily due to decrease in bandwidth revenue and was partially offset by

$5.6 million decrease in costs Costs directly associated with our network segment include costs of leasing

local access lines to connect clients to our PoPs leasing backbone circuits to interconnect our PoPs

indefeasible rights of use operations and maintenance and salaries and related benefits for personnel

directly or indirectly associated with our network services The $5.6 million of cost savings due to

$3.5 million reduction in local loop and circuit costs that were driven by lower network revenue and

$3.0 million of lower personnel costs Segment adjusted EBITDA as percentage of segment revenue was

25% for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Corporate othei Corporate other adjusted EBITDA includes all operating costs not directly associated with our

hosting or network segments primarily general and administrative costs including executive financial legal tax

internal IT and administrative support personnel and related costs costs for professional services including legal

accounting tax and consulting services These costs were $95.9 million for the year ended December 31 2010 an

increase of $9.0 million from $86.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 This was driven by $5.1 million

of acquisition and integration costs related to our acquisition of Fusepoint $2.7 million increase in salaries

wages and benefits and $1.8 million increase in software maintenance and personal property taxes

Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008

Executive Summary of Consolidated Results of Operations

Revenue increased $17.4 million or 2% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to the year ended

December 31 2008 primarily as result of 12% increase in colocation revenue Income from operations

increased to $40.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to income from operations of

$26.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The increase in income from operations of $13.6 million

was primarily due to an increase in revenues partially offset by slight increase in total operating expenses

Net loss for the year ended December 31 2009 was $20.8 million an improvement of $1.2 million from net

loss of $22.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008

The following table presents revenue and operating costs by category dollars in thousands

2009

Years Ended December 31

2008 Dollar Change Percent Change

Revenue

Colocation $341321 $304297 37024 12%

Managed hosting 265975 260212 5763 2%

Total hosting 607296 564509 42787 8%

Network services 267118 292532 25414 9%
Total revenue 874414 857041 17373 2%

Cost of revenue 480335 483054 2719 1%
Selling general and

administrative expenses 203158 212331 9173 4%

Excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which is reported separately
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Revenue Revenue was $874.4 million for the year ended December 31 2009 an increase of $17.4 million or

2% from $857.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Hosting revenue was $607.3 million for the

year ended December 31 2009 an increase of $42.8 million or 8% from $564.5 million for the year ended
December 31 2008 The increase included $11.8 million of non-recurring termination fees which included

$5.3 million related to the cancellation of our contract with AMEX and decrease of $16.9 million in recurring

revenue over the prior year due to the cancellation of our contract with AMEX both of which were primarily

reported in our managed hosting revenue Colocation revenue increased $37.0 million primarily from sales

into our new and expanded data centers Network services revenue was $267.1 million for the year ended
December 31 2009 decrease of $25.4 million or 9% from $292.5 million for the year ended December
31 2008 The decrease was driven by $24.4 million decline in our managed VPN product primarily due
to pricing pressure and client churn and included $3.9 million decrease in recurring revenue due to the

cancellation of our contract with AMEX

Cost of revenue Cost of revenue was $480.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of

$2.7 million or 1% from $483.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 This decrease was primarily

driven by $10.1 million and $6.3 million decreases in client loops and circuit costs respectively which resulted

from decreased network services revenue and $3.7 million net decreases in other costs primarily driven

by utilities These decreases were partially offset by $9.1 million increase in rent resulting from increased

hosting services revenue $3.3 million increase in salaries and wages $2.9 million increase in software

maintenance and $2.2 million increase in non-cash equity-based compensation Cost of revenue as

percentage of revenue decreased to 55% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to 56% for the

year ended December 31 2008

Sales general and administrative expenses Sales general and administrative expenses were $203.2 million

for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of $9.1 million or 4% from $212.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 This decrease was driven by decreases in salaries wages and benefits of

$4.7 million bad debt expense of $4.7 million travel and other costs of $1.8 million and personal property
taxes of $1.7 million partially offset by $3.9 million increase in non-cash equity-based compensation
expense that was primarily the result of forfeiture rate adjustments in the prior year Sales general and

administrative expenses as percentage of revenue were 23% for the year ended December 31 2009
compared to 25% for the year ended December 31 2008

Depreciation amortization and accretion Depreciation amortization and accretion expense was
$150.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 an increase of $15.8 million or 12% from $135.1 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was due to the addition and expansion of data centers

asset and other capital expenditures

Other income and expense Other income and expense was $58.2 million for the year ended December 31

2009 an increase of $12.7 million or 28% from $45.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008
The $7.5 million increase in interest expense for the year ended December 31 2009 was driven by

$2.8 million increase in interest on capital leases and the Cisco loan $3.2 million increase in interest on

our loan agreement with Lombard $1.1 million increase in accreted interest on our Convertible Notes
and $0.2 million decrease in capitalized interest Interest income decreased $3.1 million due to lower

average interest rates during the year ended December 31 2009 Other income and expense decreased

$2.0 million due to less favorable impact from currency revaluation of foreign denominated balances

The following table presents an overview of the components of net interest expense and other dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 Dollar Change Percent Change
Other income and expense

Interest expense $57976 $50450 7526 15%

Interest income 226 3364 3138 93%

Other income expense 434 1583 2017 127%

Total other income and expense $58184 $45503 $12681 28%
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Loss from continuing operations before income taxes Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

for the year ended December 31 2009 was $18.1 million an improvement of $0.9 million from loss from

continuing operations before income taxes of $19.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008

Income tax expense Income tax expense for the year ended December 31 2009 was $2.7 million compared

to $3.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The $0.3 million decrease was due to lower alternative

minimum taxes

Loss from continuing operations net of income taxes Loss from continuing operations net of income taxes

for the year ended December 31 2009 was $20.8 million an improvement of $1.2 million from loss from

continuing operations net of income taxes of $22.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008 driven by

the factors previously described

Net loss Net loss for the year ended December 31 2009 was $20.8 million an improvement of $1.2 million

from net loss of $22.0 million for the year ended December 31 2008 driven by the factors previously described

Segment Information

Segment Adjusted EBITDA

The discussion of our results of operations by segment presented below includes references to and analysis

of our segment adjusted EBITDA results Adjusted EBITDA represents income from continuing operations

before depreciation amortization and accretion and non-cash equity-based compensation Adjusted

EBITDA is reconciled below to its most comparable measure income from continuing operations Adjusted

EBITDA is further reconciled to loss from continuing operations before income taxes in Note 20 of Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K We use adjusted EBITDA

as performance measure to evaluate our segments because we believe that such information is relevant

measure of companys operating financial performance and liquidity in our industry The calculation of

adjusted EBITDA is not specified by United States generally accepted accounting principles As such our

calculation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies

The following table presents revenue and adjusted EBITDA by segment and excludes the results of our

discontinued operations dollars in thousands

Revenue

Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation

Income from continuing operations

Depreciation amortization

and accretion

Non-cash equity-based compensation

Adjusted EBITDA

2009

Years Ended December 31

2008 Dollar Change Percent Change

Hosting

Network

Total revenue

607296

267118

874414

$564509

292532

857041

$42787

25414
17373

Adjusted EBITDA

Hosting $239290 204831 $34459

Network 67610 66297 1313

Corporate other 86877 86503 374
Total adjusted EBITDA $220023 184625 $35398

8%

9%
2%

17%

2%

0%

19%

40067 26533

150854

29102

$220023

Includes all costs not directly associated with hosting services or network services

135123

22969

184625
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Revenue

Hosting Revenue from our hosting segment was $607.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009
an increase of $42.8 million or 8% from $564.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 despite

loss of $16.9 million in recurring revenue due to the cancellation of our contract with AMEX The increase

was primarily due to $37.0 million increase in colocation revenue from sales into new and expanded data

centers and included $11.8 million on non-recurring termination fees including $5.3 million related to the

cancellation of our contract with AMEX which were primarily reported in our managed hosting revenue

Network Revenue from our network segment was $267.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009
decrease of $25.4 million or 9% from $292.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 and included

$3.9 million decrease in recurring revenue due to the cancellation of our contract with AMEX The decrease

was driven by $24.4 million decline in our managed IP VPN product primarily due to pricing pressure and
client churn

Adjusted EBITDA

Hosting Adjusted EBITDA for our hosting segment was $239.3 million for the year ended December 31

2009 an increase of $34.5 million or 17% from $204.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008
The increase was driven by the $42.8 million increase in revenue for the segment partially offset by an

$8.3 million increase in hosting costs The $8.3 million increase in costs was primarily driven by revenue

growth and data center related costs for rent and expansion in Europe Segment adjusted EBITDA as

percentage of segment revenue increased to 39% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to

36% for the year ended December 31 2008

Network Adjusted EBITDA for our network segment was $67.6 million for the year ended December 31

2009 an increase of $1.3 million or 2% from $66.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The
increase was driven by $26.7 million decrease in costs associated with our network segment offset by

$25.4 million decline in network services revenue The $26.7 million decrease in costs was directly related to

the decline in revenue on client churn combined with more favorable telecom contracts Segment adjusted

EBITDA as percentage of segment revenue increased to 25% for the year ended December 31 2009
compared to 23% for the year ended December 31 2008

Corporate other Corporate other adjusted EBITDA was $86.9 million for the year ended December 31

2009 an increase of $0.4 million from $86.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The increase

was driven by increases in salaries wages and benefits and legal services partially offset by decreases in

personal property tax travel costs and audit fees

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources and Use of Cash

As of December 31 2010 our cash and cash equivalents balance was $120.3 million and we had $62.6 million

of available capacity on our revolving credit facility On July 2010 we commenced tender offer to purchase

any and all of our outstanding convertible notes or Notes for an amount in cash equal to $990 per $1000

principal amount of the Notes validly tendered and accepted for purchase plus accrued and unpaid interest up
to but not including the date of purchase The tender offer expired August 2010 and we purchased 98.4%
of the $345.0 million outstanding principal amount of the Notes or $339.4 million for $336.0 million plus and
additional $2.2 million of accrued and unpaid interest On September 14 2010 at $990 per $1000 principal

amount we purchased and extinguished $2.5 million of the remaining outstanding principal amount of the

Notes for $2.5 million including accrued and unpaid interest As of December 31 2010 $3.1 million principal

amount of the Notes remained outstanding The repurchase of the Notes was funded through our entry into

$625.0 million of senior secured credit facilities which is comprised of $550.0 million term loan maturing in

2016 and $75.0 million revolving credit facility maturing in early 2014 The $550.0 million of term loan debt

funded the repurchase of the Notes the repayment of our Lombard loan for approximately $55.8 million

the settlement and subsequent termination of our revolving credit facility with Wells Fargo Capital Finance
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of $110.0 million approximately $28.4 million of loans and leases with Cisco Systems Capital Corporation

including interest and the settlement of the interest rate swap related to our Lombard loan for approximately

$3.2 million We believe we have sufficient cash to fund business operations and capital expenditures for at

least twelve months from the date of this filing from cash on hand operations and available debt capacity

If favorable terms are made available to us we may supplement this near-term liquidity with credit facilities

and equity or debt financings or we may refinance reprice or upsize our existing credit facilities and use

the proceeds of such financing for working capital investments in or extensions of credit to our subsidiaries

capital expenditures stock repurchases debt repayment or financing for acquisitions

The following table presents our cash flows for the periods indicated dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

177741 186481 145558

313885 132936 246166

99190 14473 48062

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Effect of exchange rates on

cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

3517 459 9311

40471 39531 61857

Operating activities We generated $177.7 million of cash from operating activities during the year ended

December 31 2010 decrease of $8.8 million in cash from operating activities of $186.5 million for the

year ended December 31 2009 This decrease was driven by the lengthening of collection cycles and

increased prepayments for maintenance and rent related costs We anticipate continuing to generate cash

from operating activities during the next twelve months

Investing activities Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 was

$313.9 million an increase of $181.0 million from net cash used in investing activities of $132.9 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 The increase in cash used was driven by our net investment of

$112.8 million in Fusepoint Additionally we incurred incremental data center expansion related capital

expenditures of $28.7 million during the year ended December 31 2010

Financing activities Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31 2010 was

$99.2 million an increase of $113.7 million from net cash used by financing activities of $14.5 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 This increase primarily relates to $110.0 million in proceeds from long

term debt less related debt issuance costs of $2.6 million used to fund our acquisition of Fusepoint and

$26.4 million proceeds from stock option exercises in the year ended December 31 2010 partially offset by

$12.9 million of net transaction costs related to our debt refinancing that occurred during the year ended

December 31 2010 While we anticipate our financing activities for the next twelve months to consist

primarily of principal payments on our capital lease obligations and long-term debt we continually assess

our capital requirements and current debt and equity markets and may reprice refinance or upsize our

existing credit facilities if favorable terms are made available to us and use the proceeds of such financing

for working capital investments in or extensions of credit to our subsidiaries capital expenditures stock

repurchases debt repayment or financing for acquisitions

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable net of allowance was $65.1 million as of December 31 2010 an increase of

$19.3 million from $45.8 million at December 31 2009 and included $3.2 million of trade accounts

receivable net acquired with Fusepoint The remaining $16.1 million increase is driven by growth in revenue

lengthening of the collection cycle through both more aggressive cash management strategies employed

by and extended payment terms granted to certain clients We continue to monitor and adjust our cash

collection process and cash management strategies to mitigate any adverse impacts on our liquidity and

cash flows from operations Other than any financing activities we may pursue client collections are our

primary source of cash As such we are vulnerable to economic downturn and the impact it may have on

our clients spending We believe we have strong client base with no one client accounting for more than

10% of our revenues however 27% of our revenue for the year ended December 31 2010 was generated
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by clients in the financial services industry and 8% of that by our largest client Thomson Reuters who
also represents 18% of our outstanding net accounts receivable balance Given the ongoing economic
environment and uncertainty in the financial services industry we remain cautious regarding these clients

and their future impact on our revenue and profitability

Long-term Debt and Other Financing

Long-term debt The following table sets forth our long-term debt and other financing as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 dollars in thousands

December 31

2010 2009
Term loan $533262
Convertible notes 2887 305921
Lombard loan facility 55973
Other financing 20795
Revolver

Credit agreement

Capital and financing method lease obligations 228889 234776
Total long-term debt and other financing $765038 61Z465

The amount presented in the table above includes current amounts due of $5.5 million as of December 31 2010
Other financing includes borrowings under our Cisco loan agreement for which the weighted-average interest rate was
6.50% as of December 31 2009 The amount presented in the table above includes the current amount due of $6.6 million

for December 31 2009 The loan was paid in full on August 2010

Capital and financing method lease obligations include capital and financing method leases on certain of our facilities

and equipment held under capital leases The weighted-average interest rates for such leases were 12.84% as of

December 31 2010 and 15.32% as of December 31 2009 The amounts presented in the table above include the current
amounts due of $12.4 million as of December 31 2010 and $10.9 million as of December 31 2009

Future principal payments The following table sets forth our aggregate future principal payments of long-

term debt and other financing as of December 31 2010 dollars in thousands

_______ Future_Principal_Payments of_Long-term Debt and Other Financing

Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015__Thereafter
Term loan $548625 $5500 5500 5500 5500 5500 521125

Convertible notes 3106 3106

Capital lease obligations 175648 13841 13327 12754 14336 16516 104874
Revolver

Total 727379 $19341 $21933 $18254 $19836 $22016 $625999

Represents principal amounts of the term loan and convertible notes

Does not include future payments on our financing method lease obligations as they represent interest payments over the term
of the lease

The weighted-average cash interest rate applicable to outstanding borrowings was 6.7% and 3.2% as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Term loan and revolvei On August 2010 we entered into senior secured credit facilities consisting of

$550.0 million six-year term loan facility or the Term Loan and $75.0 million three-and-a-half-year

revolving credit facility or the Revolver with group of lenders for which Banc of America Securities

LLC and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc served as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners and
Credit Suisse Securities USA LLC and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey Inc served as arrangers and joint

bookrunners The Term Loan and Revolver contain various affirmative negative and financial covenants

which are measured on quarterly or annual basis and restrict our ability to create liens incur additional

indebtedness and make capital expenditures among other things except as permitted by the terms of

the agreement and require maintenance of certain financial measures at defined levels Our obligations

under the Term Loan and the Revolver and the guarantees of the Guarantors are secured by first-priority

security interest in substantially all of our assets interest in assets and proceeds thereof We may elect to

pay interest on base or Eurodollar rate plus applicable margin The Term Loan requires 0.25% quarterly
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principal amortization payments beginning December 31 2010 with the remaining balance payable on

the maturity date August 2016 We incurred 3.0% or $16.5 million original issue discount associated

with the Term Loan The Revolver contains $40.0 million letter of credit provision of which $12.4 million

had been issued as of December 31 2010 Unused commitments on the Revolver are subject to an annual

commitment fee of 0.50% and fee is applied to outstanding letters of credit of 4.75% The applicable

interest rate on Eurodollar loans under the Revolver would have been 5.01% at December 31 2010 however

there were no outstanding borrowings As of December 31 2010 the applicable interest rate for the Term

Loan was 6.75% including the Eurodollar floor of 1.75% and outstanding borrowings totaled $548.6 million

Unamortized original issue discount of $15.4 million on the Term Loan remained as of December 31 2010

Credit agreement In August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction we repaid the $110.0 million

outstanding plus an additional $1.5 million in fees and terminated our amended and restated credit

agreement or the Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Capital Finance The Credit Agreement was

amended in June 2010 to increase the available borrowing capacity in order to fund the purchase price

of the Fusepoint acquisition Under the amended terms of the Credit Agreement we had borrowing

capacity of $150.0 million which included $40.0 million letter of credit provision Borrowings under the

Credit Agreement could be used to fund working capital acquisitions capital expenditures and other

general corporate purposes We elected to pay interest on three month LIBOR rate plus an applicable

margin The interest rate at the time of extinguishment was 6.50% With the June 2010 amendment of the

Credit Agreement we incurred $2.6 million of additional debt issuance costs the majority of which were

recognized as loss on debt extinguishment during the year ended December 31 2010 As of December 31

2010 there were approximately $3.5 million of outstanding letters of credit remaining with the terminated

Credit Agreement provider which are backed by letter of credit issued under the Revolver

Loan agreement and lease facility We maintained term loan and security agreement or the Loan

Agreement and maintain master lease agreement or the Lease Agreement with Cisco Systems Capital

Corporation The Loan Agreement provided for borrowings of up to $33.0 million at an annual interest

rate of 6.50% to purchase network equipment which were secured by first-priority security interest in

the equipment The Lease Agreement provides lease facility or the Lease Facility to purchase equipment

with borrowings at the discretion of Cisco Systems Capital Corporation The effective interest rate on

current outstanding borrowings is 7.75% On August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction we

repaid the outstanding $16.9 million in borrowings outstanding on the Loan Agreement along with

$0.1 million of interest and $11.2 million of the $13.1 million outstanding leases under the Lease Facility

There was $0.2 million loss on debt extinguishment associated with the repayment of the leases

As of December 31 2010 we had $2.9 million in outstanding borrowings under Lease Facility

Lombard loan agreement On August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction we repaid and terminated

on behalf of our subsidiary SAVVIS UK Limited or SAVVIS UK the loan agreement or the Lombard Loan

Agreement it maintained with Lombard North Central Plc or Lombard The Lombard Loan Agreement had

five-year term and required monthly interest installments for the full term and quarterly principal installments

that were to begin in 2011 We had guaranteed the obligations of SAVVIS UK under the Lombard Loan

Agreement and the obligations were secured by first priority security interest in substantially all of SAVVIS

UKs then existing data center assets and certain future assets We maintained letter of credit of $21.2 million

which was released with the termination of the agreement total of $55.8 million or 35.0 million was paid

to Lombard which included both the outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid interest There were

0.4 million or approximately $0.6 million unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Lombard Ldan

Agreement recognized as loss on debt extinguishment during the year ended December 31 2010

Interest rate swap On August 2010 as result of the refinancing of the Lombard Loan Agreement we

terminated our interest rate swap agreement or the Swap Agreement with National Westminster Bank Plc

or NatWest for 2.0 million or approximately $3.2 million In January 2009 we had dedesignated

our existing interest rate swap and redesignated new interest rate swap by entering into the Swap

Agreement At the time of dedesignation the fair value of the existing interest rate swap was 2.5 million

which represented the financing element of the Swap Agreement and was to be amortized to earnings

as the originally hedged cash flows affect earnings The Swap Agreement hedged the monthly interest

payments incurred and paid under the Lombard Loan Agreement during the three year period beginning
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January 2009 and ending December 31 2011 At settlement the market value of the interest rate swap was
non-current liability of 2.0 million or approximately $3.2 million We recognized loss on settlement of

2.0 million or approximately $3.1 million

Interest rate cap On September 30 2010 as required by the Term Loan we entered into an interest rate cap
hedge agreement or the Cap Agreement with Bank of America NA or BOA The Cap Agreement caps the

three month Eurodollar interest rate paid to BOA on beginning notional principal amount of $155.0 million

of Term Loan outstanding During the three year period beginning October 2010 and ending October
2013 the notional amount of the Cap Agreement declines by the 0.25% quarterly principal amortization

of the Term Loan as it applies to the original notional principal amount The Cap Agreement effectively

caps the interest rates paid to BOA on the then outstanding capped notional principal amount of the Term
Loan at 3.0% during year one 3.5% during year two and 4.0% during year three The fair value of the Cap
Agreement was $0.5 million at December 31 2010

For further information on our long-term debt and related derivatives please refer to Notes and 10
respectively of Notes to the Financial Statements located in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Debt Covenants

Under the terms of our Term Loan and Revolver agreements we are required to comply with certain financial

covenant ratios consisting of quarterly covenants for maximum total leverage and minimum fixed charge

coverage ratios and annual maximum capital expenditures As of December 31 2010 we were in compliance
with all such financial covenants

The provisions of our debt agreements contain covenants including but not limited to restricting or limiting

our ability to incur more debt issue guarantees pay dividends make capital expenditures and repurchase
stock subject to financial measures and other conditions We were in compliance with all such covenants

as of and during the year ended December 31 2010 and anticipate compliance with all covenants for at

least the next twelve months However the ability to comply with these provisions may be affected by
events beyond our control The breach of any of these covenants could result in default under our debt

agreements and could trigger cross defaults and acceleration of repayment obligations

Commitments and Contingencies

Our client contracts generally span multiple periods which result in us entering into arrangements with

various suppliers of communications services that require us to maintain minimum spending levels some
of which increase over time to secure favorable pricing terms Our remaining aggregate minimum spending

levels allocated ratably over the terms of such contracts are $41.8 million $13.9 million $9.7 million

$8.3 million $8.3 million and $43.7 million during the years ended December 31 2011 2012 2013 2014
2015 and thereafter respectively Should we not meet the minimum spending levels in any given term
decreasing termination liabilities representing percentage of the remaining contractual amounts may
become immediately due and payable Furthermore certain of these termination liabilities are potentially

subject to reduction should we experience the loss of major client or suffer loss of revenue from

general economic downturn Before considering the effects of any potential reductions for the business

downturn provisions if we had terminated all of these agreements as of December 31 2010 the maximum
liability would have been $125.7 million To mitigate this exposure at times we align our minimum spending

commitments with client revenue commitments for related services

We are subject to various legal proceedings and actions arising in the normal course of our business

While the results of all such proceedings and actions cannot be predicted management believes based

on facts known to management today that the ultimate outcome of all such proceedings and actions will

not have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operation or cash flows

We have employment confidentiality severance and non-competition agreements with key executive

officers that contain provisions with regard to base salary bonus equity-based compensation and other

employee benefits These agreements also provide for severance benefits in the event of employment
termination or change in control
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The following table presents our known undiscounted contractual obligations as of December 31 2010

dollars in thousands
Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than

Total lYear Years Years Years

Long-term debt obligations 776837 43074 88154 86814 558795

Capital finance lease obligations2 369966 41814 77669 75478 175005

Operating lease obligations 590902 74418 129221 89751 297512

Purchase obligations 159127 60204 38758 16511 43654

Asset retirement obligations 37617 1247 7880 8206 20284

Total contractual obligations $1934449 $220757 $341682 $276760 $1095250

Includes interest payments of $225.1 million over the remaining term of the debt

Includes interest payments of $132.8 million over the remaining term of our capital lease obligations and $61.5 million which

represents interest payments over the remaining term of our financing method lease obligation

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2010 we did not have any significant off-balance-sheet arrangements as defined in Item

303a4ii of United States Securities and Exchange Regulation S-K In the normal course of business we

are party to certain guarantees and financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk as they are not reflected

in our consolidated balance sheets such as letters of credit indemnifications and operating leases under

which certain facilities are leased The agreements associated with such guarantees and financial instruments

mature at various dates through January 2031 and may be renewed as circumstances warrant As of December

31 2010 we had $15.9 million in letters of credit outstanding pledged as collateral to support certain facility

leases and utility agreements Also in connection with the 2007 sale of our assets related to content delivery

network services we agreed to indemnify the purchaser should it incur certain losses due to breach of our

representations and warranties We have not incurred liability relating to these indemnification provisions

in the past and we believe that the likelihood of any future payout relating to these provisions is remote

Therefore we have not recorded liability during any period related to these indemnification provisions

Our guarantees and financial instruments are valued based on the estimated amount of exposure and the

likelihood of performance being required Based on our past experience no claims have been made against

these guarantees and financial instruments nor do we expect exposure to material losses resulting therefrom

As result we determined such guarantees and financial instruments did not have significant value and have

not recorded any related amounts in our consolidated financial statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

We have identified the accounting policies below as critical to our business operations and to the

understanding of our consolidated financial position and results of operations For detailed description on

the application of these and other accounting policies see Note in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Note that our preparation of this Annual Report

requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period There can be no assurance that actual results

will not differ from those estimates

Revenue Recognition

We derive the majority of our revenue from recurring revenue streams consisting primarily of hosting

services which includes managed hosting and colocation and network services We recognize revenue

from those services as services are provided Installation fees and related costs are deferred and recognized

ratably over the life of the client contract Fees for migration services are recognized as those services are

performed Termination fees are recognized when received Revenue is recognized when the related service

has been provided there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement the fee is fixed or determinable and

collection is reasonably assured
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In addition we have service level commitments pursuant to individual client contracts with majority of our
clients To the extent that such service levels are not achieved or are otherwise disputed due to performance
or service issues unfavorable weather or other service interruptions or conditions we estimate the amount
of credits to be issued and record reduction to revenue with corresponding increase in the allowance for
credits and uncollectibles In the event that we provide credits or payments to clients related to service level

claims we may request recovery of such costs through third party insurance agreements Insurance proceeds
received under these agreements are recorded as an offset to previously recorded revenue reductions

Allowance for Credits and Uncollectibles

As previously described herein we have service level commitments with certain of our clients To the extent
that such service levels are not achieved we estimate the amount of credits to be issued based on historical
credits issued and known disputes and record reduction to revenue with corresponding increase in the
allowance for credits and uncollectibles

We assess collectibility of account receivables based on number of factors including client payment
history and creditworthiness We generally do not request collateral from our clients although in certain

cases we may obtain security deposit We maintain an allowance for uncollectibles when evaluating the

adequacy of allowances and we specifically analyze accounts receivable current economic conditions and
trends historical bad debt write-offs client concentrations client payment history and creditworthiness
and changes in client payment terms Delinquent account balances are charged to expense after we have
determined that the likelihood of collection is not probable

Equity-Based Compensation

We calculate the fair value of total equity-based compensation for stock options and restricted preferred
units using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which utilizes certain assumptions and estimates
that have material impact on the amount of total compensation cost recognized in our consolidated
financial statements Total equity-based compensation costs for restricted stock units and restricted stock
awards are calculated based on the market value of our common stock on the date of grant An additional

assumption is made on the number of awards expected to forfeit prior to vesting which decreases
the amount of total expense recognized This assumption is evaluated and the estimate is revised on
quarterly or as needed basis Total equity-based compensation is amortized to non-cash equity-based

compensation expense over the vesting or performance period of the award as applicable which typically

ranges from three to four years

Other Critical Accounting Poilcies

While all of the significant accounting policies described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements are important some of these policies may be viewed as being critical Such policies are those
that are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and require our most difficult subjective
or complex estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period We base our estimates and
assumptions on historical experience and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions For further information

regarding the application of these and other accounting policies see Note of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

For information on recently adopted and recently issued accounting pronouncements please refer to

Note of Notes to the Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31 2010 we had $548.6 million outstanding variable rate debt on our term loan with an

interest rate payable as of December 31 2010 of Eurodollar floor plus margin of 6.75% The Company entered

into an interest rate cap agreement on September 30 2010 to cap the interest on portion of our term loan

between 3.0% and 4.0% during the three year agreement There was 3% original issue discount on the term

loan which is accreted over the life of the loan and recognized as interest expense The carrying value of the

term loan as of December 31 2010 was $533.3 million The remainder of our outstanding debt was fixed rate

debt and was comprised of our convertible notes The convertible notes bear cash interest on the $3.1 million

principal at 3% per annum and an additional 5.36% of interest expense is recognized as accretion of the

discounted portion of the convertible notes As of December 31 2010 the carrying amount of the convertible

notes was $2.9 million

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are subject to market risks arising from foreign currency exchange rates We generally engage in foreign

currency forwards hedging transactions to mitigate our foreign exchange risk Our percentage of revenue

generated and costs incurred that are denominated in currencies other than the U.S Dollar is presented in the

following table

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Service revenue denominated in currencies other than the U.S Dollar 20% 16% 10%

Direct and operating costs incurred in currencies other than the U.S Dollar1 27% 18% 17%

Excludes depreciation amortization and accretion and non-cash equity-based compensation

We have performed sensitivity analysis as of December 31 2010 that measures the change in the financial

position arising from hypothetical 10% adverse movement in the exchange rates of the Euro the British

Pound the Canadian Dollar the Japanese Yen and the Singapore Dollar our most widely used foreign

currencies relative to the U.S Dollar with all variables held constant The aggregate potential change in fair

value resulting from hypothetical 10% change in the above currencies was $4.2 million as of December 31

2010 and $2.4 million as of December 31 2009 gain or loss in fair value associated with these currencies

is generally recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on foreign currency translation within accumulated other

comprehensive loss in stockholders equity of the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 and as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 and related notes thereto required by this item begin on page 58 as listed in

Item 15 of Part IV of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH

ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We had no disagreements on accounting or financial disclosure matters with our independent registered

public accounting firm to report under this Item
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ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management including
the Chief Executive Officer CEO and Chief Financial Officer CFO of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by
this report Based on managements evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this report our CEO
and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the

Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in

United States Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In September 2010 we implemented new billing system for our global operations As result we have

updated our internal controls as necessary to accommodate the modifications to our business processes
and accounting procedures There have not been any other significant changes in our internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f of the Exchange Act during the period
covered by this report that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Managements Report_on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15f of the Exchange Act Under the supervision and with
the participation of our management including our CEO and CFO we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2010

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 has been audited

by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is

included on page 47
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of SAVVIS Inc

We have audited SAVVIS Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based

on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria SAVVIS Inc.s management is responsible

for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing

the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion SAVVIS Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of SAVVIS Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010

and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in stockholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 and our report dated March 2011

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

St Louis Missouri

March 2011
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ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

No reportable information

PART III

The information required by Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance Item 11

Executive Compensation Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Stockholder Matters Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director

Independence and Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services of Form 10-K unless disclosed in this

Part Ill will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders which will be
filed within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended December 31 2010 and such information is

incorporated herein by reference

We have Code of Conduct the Code applicable to all of our employees officers and directors including
without limitation the Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer and other senior financial officers

The Code may be found in the Investors section of our website at www.savvis.net

PART IV

ITEM_15 EXHIBITS_FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements PAGE
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 57
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 58
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 60
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
61

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 62

Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule is included below All other schedules have been omitted because they
are not applicable not required or the information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto

SCHEDULE IlVALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

The following table presents valuation and qualifying accounts for the years ended December 31 2010
2009 and 2008 in thousands

Additions

Balance at Charged to

Beginning Costs and Balance at

Description of Period Expenses Deductions End of Period
Allowance for Credits and Uncollectibles

Year ended December 31 2010 8133 $19813 18356 $9590
Year ended December 31 2009 7947 14554 14368 8133
Year ended December 31 2008 5060 22361 19474 7947

Includes bad debt provisions an increase to sales general and administrative expense and allowance for sales credits
reduction of revenue Pursuant to certain of our individual client contracts we have service level commitments with certain
of our clients To the extent that such service levels are not achieved or are otherwise disputed due to third party power
or service issues or other service interruptions or conditions we estimate the amount of credits to be issued and record
reduction to revenue with corresponding increase in the allowance for credits and uncollectibles
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Exhibits

The following exhibits are either provided with this Form 10-K or are incorporated herein by reference

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit

Index

Number Exhibit Description

Filed with Filing

the Form Date with Exhibit

10-K Form the SEC Number

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated May 28 2010 by and

among Fusepoint Inc Savvis Inc Blue Jay Merger Sub Inc

and M/C Venture Partners L.P as Stockholders Representative 8-K June 2010 2.1

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

of the Registrant 5-1 November 12 1999 3.1

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant S-i/A January 31 2000 3.2

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant 10-0 August 14 2002 3.3

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant 10-0 August 13 2004 3.4

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant 10-a August 2005 3.5

3.6 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant 8-K June 2006 3.1

3.7 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant 10-a August 2008 3.3

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate S-i/A January 31 2000 4.1

4.2 Indenture dated as of May 2007 between Registrant

and The Bank of New York as trustee including the

Form of Global Note attached as Exhibit thereto 8-K May 10 2007 4.1

10.1 1999 Stock Option Plan as amended 10-K April 17 2001 10.1

10.2 Amendment No to 1999 Stock Option Plan 10-0 August 14 2002 10.1

10.3 Amendment No to 1999 Stock Option Plan 10-0 August 14 2002 10.2

10.4 Amendment No to 1999 Stock Option Plan 10-0 August 14 2002 10.3

10.5 Amended and Restated 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 10-0 May 2006 10.4

10.6 Amendment No to Amended and Restated

2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 10-K February 26 2007 10.6

10.7 Amendment No to Amended and Restated

2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 8-K May 15 2007 10.1

10.8 Amendment No to Amended and Restated

2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 10-0 July 31 2007 10.3

10.9 Amendment No to Amended and Restated

2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 8-K May 22 2009 10.1

10.10 Amendment No to Amended and Restated

2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 8-K May 22 2009 10.2

10.11 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan 8-K August 2008 10.1

10.12 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

under the 1999 Stock Option Plan S-i/A December 30 1999 10.2

10.13 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

under the 1999 Stock Option Plan 10-K February 28 2003 10.7

10.14 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 10-0 October 30 2003 10.1

10.15 Form of Stock Unit Agreement

under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 8-K August 23 2005 10.1

Savvk Inc 49



Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Filed with Filing

Index the Form Date with Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description ______ _____
10-K Form the SEC Number

10.16 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement

under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan 10-K February 28 2006 10.12

10.17 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement

under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan

for November 2009 performance-based equity awards 10-K March 2010 10.17

10.18 2011 Annual Incentive Plan

under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan

10.19 Form of Employment Confidentiality Severance and

Non-Competition Agreement for use after August 2010 10-Q November 2010 10.3

10.20 Form of Indemnification Agreement with

Directors and Executive Officers 10-a November 2010 10.4

10.21 Employment Agreement dated March 10 2010

between the Registrant and James Ousley 10-a May 2010 10.1

10.22 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated August 31 2010

between the Registrant and James Ousley 8-K September 2010 10.1

10.23 Employment Agreement dated March 13 2006
between the Registrant and Philip Koen 10-a May 2006 10.2

10.24 First Amendment to Employment Agreement

dated as of August 31 2006

between the Registrant and Philip Koen 10-a November 2006 10.1

10.25 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement

dated as of December 19 2008

between the Registrant and Philip Koen 10-K February 27 2009 10.18

10.26 Separation and General Release Agreement executed

January 2010 between the Registrant and Philip Koen 8-K January 13 2010 10.1

10.27 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated March 30 2009

between the Registrant and Gregory Freiberg 8-K April 2009 10.1

10.28 Letter Agreement dated February 25 2010

between the Registrant and Gregory Freiberg 8-K March 2010 10.1

10.29 Employment Agreement dated October 2006
between the Registrant and Jeffrey Von Deylen 8-K September 29 2006 10.1

10.30 First Amendment to Employment Agreement

dated December 2008

between the Registrant and Jeffrey Von Deylen 10-K February 27 2009 10.23

10.31 Letter Agreement dated February 10 2009

between the Registrant and Jeffrey Von Deylen 10-K February 27 2009 10.24

10.32 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated September 2006

between the Registrant and Bryan Doerr 10-K February 27 2009 10.30

10.33 First Amendment to Employment Confidentiality Severance

and Non-Competition Agreement dated December 19 2008

between the Registrant and Bryan Doerr 10-K February 27 2009 10.31

10.34 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated March 13 2007

between the Registrant and William Fathers 10-K February 27 2009 10.32

10.35 First Amendment to Employment Confidentiality Severance

and Non-Competition Agreement dated December 19 2008

between the Registrant and William Fathers 10-K February 27 2009 10.33
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Filed with Filing

Index the Form Date with Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description 10-K Form the SEC Number

10.36 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated October 2007

between the Registrant and Paul Goetz 10-K February 27 2009 10.34

10.37 First Amendment to Employment Confidentiality Severance

and Non-Competition Agreement dated December 19 2008

between the Registrant and Paul Goetz 10-K February 27 2009 10.35

10.38 Separation and General Release Agreement dated

October 27 2009 between the Registrant and Paul Goetz 10-K March 2010 10.33

10.39 Employment Confidentiality Severance and Non-Competition

Agreement dated January 2009

between the Registrant and Thomas Riley 10-K March 2010 10.34

10.40 Separation and General Release Agreement dated

January 20 2011 between the Registrant and Thomas Riley 8-K January 20 2011 10.1

10.41 Form of Employment Confidentiality Severance and

Non-Competition Agreement for use prior to August 2010 10-0 November 2006 10.3

10.42 Security Agreement dated June 10 2005 by and among SAVVIS

the grantor parties thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance

as the administrative agent for the lender parties 8-K June 16 2005 10.2

10.43 Guaranty Agreement dated June 10 2005 by and among SAVVIS

the grantor parties thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance

as the administrative agent for the lender parties 8-K June 16 2005 10.3

10.44 Trademark Security Agreement dated June 10 2005 by and

among SAVVIS the grantor parties thereto and Wells Fargo

Capital Finance as the administrative agent for the lender parties 8-K June 16 2005 10.4

10.45 Patent Security Agreement dated June 10 2005 by and

among SAVVIS the grantor parties thereto and Wells Fargo

Capital Finance as the administrative agent for the lender parties 8-K June 16 2005 10.5

10.46 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated

December 2008 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri corporation Registrant the lenders that

are signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance

as the arranger and the administrative agent for the Lenders 8-K December 2008 10.1

10.47 Amendment No ito the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated December12 2008 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders 10-K February 27 2009 10.55

10.48 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated February 26 2009 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders 10-Q August 2009 10.1

10.49 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated April 30 2009 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders 10-0 August 2009 10.2

10.50 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated December 23 2009 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders 10-K March 2010 10.44

SaVVS nc 51



Exhibit

Index

Number Exhibit Description

10.51 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated January 29 2010 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders

10.52 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated March 31 2010 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders

10.53 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated May 28 2010 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that are

signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the arranger

and the administrative agent for the Lenders

10.54 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

dated June 16 2010 by and among SAVVIS Communications

Corporation Missouri Corporation Registrant the lenders that

are signatories thereto and Wells Fargo Capital Finance as the

arranger and the administrative agent for the Lenders

10.55 Charge of Shares in SAVVIS UK Limited dated December 2008

by and between the Registrant and Wells Fargo Capital Finance

10.56 Trademark Security Agreement dated as of December 2008

among certain grantors listed on the signature pages thereto and

Wells Fargo Capital Finance Capital Finance

10.57 First Amendment to Trademark Security Agreement dated as

of December 2008 by and between the Borrower and

Wells Fargo Capital Finance

10.58 Supplement No ito the Security Agreement dated June 16 2010

by and among the grantor parties thereto and Wells Fargo Capital

Finance as the administrative agent for the lender parties

10.59 Guarantor Joinder Agreement dated June 16 2010 by and

among Blue Jay Merger Sub Inc the loan parties to the

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Wells Fargo

Capital Finance as administrative agent for the lender parties

10.60 Patent Security Agreement dated as of December 2008

among certain grantors listed on the signature pages thereto

and Wells Fargo Capital Finance

10.61 First Amendment to Patent Security Agreement dated as of

December 2008 by and between the Borrower and

Wells Fargo Capital Finance

10.62 Loan and Security Agreement dated December 18 2006

by and between SAVVIS and Cisco Systems Capital Corporation

10.63 First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated

July 31 2007 by and between SAVVIS and

Cisco Systems Capital Corporation

10.64 Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated

December 21 2007 by and between SAVVIS and

Cisco Systems Capital Corporation

10.65 Guaranty Agreement dated December 18 2006

by and between the Registrant and

Cisco Systems Capital Corporation

Incorporated by Reference

Filed with Filing

the Form Date with Exhibit

10-K Form the SEC Number

8-K June 17 2010 10.2

8-K June 17 2010 10.3

10-Q August 2010 10.4

i0-Q August 2010 10.5

8-K June 2010 10.1

8-K June 17 2010 10.1

8-K December 2008 10.2

8-K December 2008 10.3

8-K December 2008 10.4

8-K December 2008 10.6

8-K December 2008 10.5

8-K December 20 2006 10.1

10-0 October 31 2007 10.2

10-K February 26 2008 10.38

8-K December 20 2006 10.2
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Filed with Filing

Index the Form Date with Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description 10-K Form the SEC Number

10.66 Facility Agreement dated June 27 2008 by and among

SAVVIS UK Limited Registrant and Lombard North Central Plc 8-K July 2008 10.1

10.67 Asset Security Agreement dated June 27 2008 by and among
SAVVIS UK Limited Registrant Delaware corporation

and Lombard North Central Plc 8-K July 2008 10.2

10.68 Deed of Guarantee Priority and Acknowledgement dated

October 31 2008 by and among Lombard North Central Plc

SAVVIS UK Limited Registrant SAVVIS Communications

Corporation and National Westminster Bank Plc 10-0 November 2008 10.4

10.69 Asset Security Agreement dated October 31 2008 by and among

SAVVIS UK Limited Registrant and National Westminster Bank Plc 10-a November 2008 10.5

10.70 Credit Agreement dated August 2010 by and among
SAVVIS Communications Corporation SAVVIS Inc each lender

from time to time party thereto and Bank of America N.A

as Administrative Agent Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer 8-K August 11 2010 10.1

10.71 Investor Rights Agreement dated as of March 2002

among the registrant Welsh Carson Anderson Stowe VIII L.P

the various entities and individuals affiliated with Welsh Carson

Anderson Stowe VIII L.P listed on the signature pages thereto

Reuters Holdings Switzerland SA and the other Investors

as defined therein 8-K March 27 2002 10.2

10.72 Amendment No dated June 28 2002 to the Investor Rights

Agreement dated as of March 2002 among the registrant

Welsh Carson Anderson Stowe VIII L.P the various entities and

individuals affiliated with Welsh Carson Anderson Stowe VIII L.P

listed on the signature pages thereto Reuters Holdings Switzerland

SA and the Other Investors as defined therein 8-K July 2002 10.2

10.73 Amendment No dated as of May 10 2006 to the Investors

Rights Agreement among the Registrant Welsh Carson

Andersen Stowe VIII L.P and the other investors named therein 8-K July 2006 10.1

10.74 Lease Agreement dated as of May 24 2002

by and between Duke Realty Limited Partnership and SAVVIS 10-a August 14 2002 10.6

10.75 Office Lease between WGP Associates LLC and SAVVIS 10-K March 30 2000 10.27

10.76 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2004 between

SAVVIS Asset Holdings Inc and Meerkat SC Office LLC 10-a November 15 2004 10.2

10.77 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2004 between

SAVVIS Asset Holdings Inc and Meerkat LA1 LLC 10-a November 15 2004 10.3

10.78 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2004 between

SAVVIS Asset Holdings Inc and Meerkat SC4 LLC ia-a November 15 2004 10.4

10.79 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2004 between

SAVVIS Asset Holdings Inc and Meerkat SC5 LLC 10-a November 15 2004 10.5

10.80 Lease Agreement dated as of March 2004 between

SAVVIS Asset Holdings Inc and Meerkat SC8 LLC 10-0 November 15 2004 10.6

10.81 Amended and Restated Lease Agreement dated June 30 2006

between SAVVIS and Digital Centreport L.P ia-a July 31 2006 10.5

10.82 Data Center Lease dated December 21 2006

by and between SAVVIS and Digital Piscataway LLC 8-K December 28 2006 10.1

10.83 Cost Sharing and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between

Level Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc ia-a November 15 2004 10.7
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Exhibit Filed with Filing

Index the Form Date with Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description 10-K Form the SEC Number
10.84 First Amendment dated as of August 11 2000 to Cost Sharing

and RU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.85 Second Amendment dated as of August 11 2000 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.86 Third Amendment dated as of November 22 2000 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.87 Fourth Amendment dated as of January 2001 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.88 Fifth Amendment dated as of February 15 2001 to Cost Sharing

and RU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.89 Sixth Amendment dated as of August 2001 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.90 Seventh Amendment dated as of March 2002 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.91 Eighth Amendment dated as of March 23 2002 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.92 Ninth Amendment dated as of March 23 2002 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.93 Tenth Amendment dated as of August 27 2003 to Cost Sharing

and IRU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

10.94 Eleventh Amendment dated as of March 2004 to Cost Sharing

and RU Agreement dated as of May 25 1999 between Level

Communications LLC and Cable Wireless USA Inc

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

10-a November 15 2004 10.8

10-a November iS 2004 10.9

10-a November 15 2004 10.10

10-a November 15 2004 10.11

10-a November 15 2004 10.12

10-a November 15 2004 10.13

10-a November 15 2004 10.14

10-a November 15 2004 10.15

10-a November 15 2004 10.16

10-a November 15 2004 10.17

10-a November 15 2004 10.18

Confidential treatment has been granted for this exhibit The copy filed as an exhibit omits the information subject to the

request for confidential treatment

Compensation plans or arrangements
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on

March 2011

SAVVIS Inc

By Is James Ousley

James Ousley

Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities indicated below and on the dates indicated

Signature Title ____ Date

Is JAMES OUSLEY Chief Executive Officer

James Ousley principal executive officer

and Chairman of the Board of Directors March 2011

Is GREGORY FREIBERG Chief Financial Officer March 2011

Gregory Freiberg principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer

Is RANDY DOBBS Director March 2011

Randy Dobbs

Is CLYDE HEINTZELMAN Director March 2011

Clyde Heintzelman

/s/ THOMAS MCINERNEY Director March 2011

Thomas Mclnerney

/s/ JAMES PELLOW Director March 2011

James Pellow

/s/ DAVID PETERSCHMIDT Director March 2011

David Peterschmidt

/5/ MERCEDES WALTON Director March 2011

Mercedes Walton

/s/ PATRICK WELSH Director March 2011

Patrick Welsh
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

SAVVIS Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SAVVIS Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of

operations changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2010 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index

at Item 15a These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our

audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of SAVVIS Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion

the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken

as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States SAVVIS Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based

on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2011 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

St Louis Missouri

March 2011
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SAVVIS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except per share data

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable less allowance for credits and uncollectibles

of $9590 and $8133 as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total Current Assets

Property and equipment net

Goodwill

Intangible assets net

Other non-current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Payables and other trade accruals 73445 52710
Current portion of long-term debt and lease obligations 17881 17479
Other current accrued liabilities 84101 6314
Total Current Liabilities 175427 138503
Long-term debt net of current portion 530649 376089
Capital and financing method lease obligations net of current portion 216508 223897

Other_non-current accrued liabilities 74937 76452
Total Liabilities 997521 814941
Commitments and Contingencies see Note 15

Stockholders Equity

Common stock $0.01 par value 1500000 shares authorized 56604
and 54337 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively 566 545
Additional paid-in capital 886593 862834
Accumulated deficit 688388 634429
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 12642 19133
Total Stockholders Equity 186129 209817
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity 1183650 1024758

December 31

2010 2009

120344

65058

32359

217761

843801

75883

19540

26665

1183650

160815

45754

21217

227786

783852

404

12716

$1024758

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SAYVIS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share data

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Revenue $932984 874414 857041

Operating Expenses

Cost of revenue

including non-cash equity-based compensation

expense of $5919 $5498 and $3339 500749 480335 483054

Sales general and administrative expenses

including non-cash equity-based compensation

expense of $19759 $23604 and $19630 226842 203158 212331

Depreciation amortization and accretn 180903 150854 135123

Total Operating Expenses 908494 834347 830508

Income from Continuing Operations 24490 40067 26533

Loss on debt extinguishment 8735

Other income and expense 70770 58184 45503

Loss from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes 55015 18117 18970

Income tax benefit expense 995 2729 2996

Loss from Continuing Operations net of Income Taxes 54020
_____

20846 21966

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 61

Net Loss 53959 20846 21966

Loss per Share from Continuing Operations

Basic loss per share 0.98 0.39 0.41

Diluted loss per share 0.98 0.39 0.41

Weighted-Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic 55312 53786 53317

Diluted 55312 53786 53317

Excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which is reported separately

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SAVVIS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
in thousands

Years Ended December 31

________________________ ____ 2010 2009 2008
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net loss 53959
Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 61

Loss from continuing operations net of income taxes 54020
Reconciliation of net loss to net cash provided

by operating activities

Depreciation amortization and accretion 180903
Non-cash equity-based compensation 25678
Accrued interest

10511

Amortization of debt discount 10127

Loss on debt extinguishment 7535
Other net 4244
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade accounts receivable net 15504
Prepaid expenses and other current and non-current assets 19559
Payables and other trade accruals 17553

Other accrued liabilities 9652
___________

Net cash provided by continuing operations 177120

Net cash provided by discontinued operations 621

Net cash provided by operating activities 177741 186481 145558

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Payments for capital expenditures 202554
Acquisition of Fusepoint Inc net of cash received 112790
Cash received for sale of business 1459

______
Net cash used in investing activities 313885

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt 643500 2865 62292
Principal payments on long-term debt 525619 6600 5129
Payments for debt extinguishment costs 1179
Payments for debt issuance costs 12805 1885
Proceeds from stock option exercises 26367 367 907
Payments for employee taxes on equity-based instruments 3326 1749 2298
Principal payments under capital lease obligations 23141 7145 5825
Other net 4607 2211
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 99I90 14473 48062
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3517 459 9311
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 40471 39531 61857
cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 160815 121284 183141

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 120344 160815 121284

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes net

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

Assets acquired and obligations incurred under capital leases

Assets acquired and obligations incurred

under financing agreements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

20846 21966

20846 21966

150854

29102

4578

14319

135123

22969

5260

13194

943 852

6331

5893

2322

7015
186481

1241

5591
1360
1682

145558

132936 246166

132936 246166

45584 37228

1030

6864

1747

32380

1714

43000 36160

24160
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SAVVIS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUTY

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

in thousands

Shares of

Common Stock

Outstanding

Additional

Paid-In

Capital

Accumulated

Other

Accumulated Comprehensive

Deficit Loss

Total

Stockholders

Equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Common

Stock

Balance at December 31 2007 52977 $530 811559 591617 3724 216748

Issuance of common stock 487 2836 2841

Payments for employee taxes on

equity-based instruments 2298 2298

Recognition of equity-based

compensation costs 22785 22785

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 21966 21966

Foreign currency

translation adjustments
14381 14381

Change in derivatives 3552 3552

Net comprehensive loss 21966 17933 39899

Balance at December 31 2008 53464 535 834882 613583 21657 200177

Issuance of common stock 873 10 1203 1213

Payments for employee taxes

on equity-based instruments 1749 1749

Recognition of equity-based

compensation costs 28498 28498

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 20846 20846

Foreign currency

translation adjustment 2502 2502

Change in derivatives 22 22

Net comprehensive loss 20846 2524 18322

Balance at December 31 2009 54337 545 862834 634429 19133 209817

Issuance of common stock 2267 21 27535 27556

Payments for employee taxes

on equity-based instruments 3326 3326

Recognition of equity-based

compensation costs 24587 24587

Convertible notes settlement 25037 25037

Comprehensive loss

Net loss 53959 53959

Foreign currency

translation adjustment
3313 3313

Change in derivatives 3178 3l78

Net comprehensive loss 53959 6491 47468

Balance at December 31 2010 56604 566 $886593 $688388 $12642 186129
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SAVVIS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

dollars in thousands except share data and where indicated

NOTE 1DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

SAVVIS Inc the Company provides information technology IT services including cloud services

managed hosting managed security colocation professional services and network services through its

global infrastructure to businesses and government agencies around the world

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with United States U.S generally accepted
accounting principles under the rules and regulations of the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission
the SEC All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation and in the

opinion of management all normal recurring adjustments considered necessary for fair presentation have
been included Material subsequent events have been evaluated through the report issuance date and the

Company determined that there were no material subsequent events that would impact the Companys
consolidated financial statements for the annual period ended December 31 2010

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period
financial statement presentation

During the first quarter of 2009 the Company underwent an evaluation of job functions which resulted

in realignment of costs from cost of revenue to sales general and administrative expenses which the

Company believes more accurately presents the components of operating costs To reflect the impact
this change would have made if implemented in the prior period the cost of revenue and sales general
and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31 2008 have been adjusted to reflect the

$12.2 million reclassification Total operating expenses and net loss were not impacted by the change

NOTE_2SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT_ACCOUNTING_POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies cash on hand and deposits in banks including commercial paper money market
accounts and other investments it may hold from time to time with maturity to the Company of three

months or less as cash and cash equivalents

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company invests excess cash with high credit quality financial institutions which bear minimal risk and
by policy limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution The Companys concentrations

of credit risk are principally in accounts receivable The Company periodically reviews the credit quality of

its clients and generally does not require collateral Given the economic environment and uncertainty in the

recent past the Company continues to remain cautious regarding clients and their potential impact on the

Companys revenue and accounts receivable collectibility

Trade Accounts Receivable

The Company classifies as trade accounts receivable amounts due within twelve months arising from the

provision of services in the normal course of business

Allowance for Credits and Uncollectibles

The Company has service level commitments with certain of its clients To the extent that such service

levels are not achieved the Company estimates the amount of credits to be issued based on historical
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credits issued and known disputes and records reduction to revenue with corresponding increase in the

allowance for credits and uncollectibles

The Company assesses collectibility of accounts receivable based on number of factors including client

payment history and creditworthiness The Company generally does not request collateral from its clients

although in certain cases it may obtain security deposit The Company maintains an allowance for

uncollectibles and when evaluating the adequacy of allowances specifically analyzes accounts receivable

current economic conditions and trends historical bad debt write-offs client concentrations client payment

history and creditworthiness and changes in client payment terms Delinquent account balances are written

off after management has determined that the likelihood of collection is not probable

Property and Equipment

The Companys property and equipment primarily include communications and data center equipment facilities

and leasehold improvements software and office equipment which are recorded at cost and depreciated using

the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives Software equipment and leasehold improvements have

useful lives that range between three and fifteen years and leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of their

useful lives or lease terms Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred

Goodwill

The Company has goodwill attributable to its hosting segment of $75.9 million as of December 31 2010

There was no goodwill attributed to the network segment The Company performs annual impairment tests

on its goodwill by comparing the fair value of the reporting segment to its carrying value If the fair value

exceeds the carrying value the goodwill is not impaired and no further testing will be needed If the carrying

value exceeds the fair value the implied fair value of the goodwill will be determined and compared to the

carrying value and the Company will recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference

Intangible Assets

The Companys intangible assets primarily include client relationships acquired with our acquisition of

Fusepoint Inc and are amortized over the remaining contract terms of the applicable client relationships as

they impact revenue The remainder of the Companys intangible assets consists of other client relationships

trademarks patents and peering agreements which are amortized using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives Useful lives of the Companys intangible assets are four years for trademarks eleven to

fifteen years for patents three to six years for client relationships and seven years for peering agreements

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment annually or whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not be recoverable If the Company determines that the

carrying value of long-lived asset may not be recoverable permanent impairment charge is recorded for

the amount by which the carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value Fair value is measured

based on discounted cash flow method using discount rate determined by management The estimates

of cash flows and discount rates are subject to change due to the economic environment including such

factors as interest rates expected market returns and volatility of markets served Management believes its

estimates of future cash flows discount rates and fair values are reasonable however changes in estimates

could result in impairment charges The Company had no asset impairment charges during the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 or 2008

Depreciation Amortization and Accretion

Depreciation and amortization expense consists primarily of depreciation of property and equipment and

assets held under capital lease as well as amortization of intangible assets and leasehold improvements

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciation and amortization are calculated

using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the related assets The Companys client relationship

intangible asset is amortized over the life of the applicable client relationships as they impact revenue The

remainder of the Companys intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the useful

lives of the related assets Accretion expense results from aging of the discounted present value of various

liabilities including asset retirement obligations
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has estimated the fair value of its financial instruments as of December 31 2010 and 2009
using available market information or other appropriate valuation methods Assets and liabilities are

categorized as Level Level or Level dependant on the reliability of the inputs used in the valuation

Level is considered more reliable than Level as Level depends on managements assumptions The
definitions of the levels are as follows

Level Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date

Level Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that are observable for the asset or

liability directly or indirectly such as quoted price for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

Level Inputs are unobservable and are only used to measure fair value when observable inputs are

not available The inputs reflect the entitys own assumptions and are based on the best information

available This allows for the fair value of an asset or liability to be measured when no active market for

that asset or liability exists

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents trade accounts receivable other current assets payables
and other trade accruals and other current liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term nature

of such instruments As of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 substantially all of the Companys
$120.3 million and $160.8 million respectively of cash and cash equivalents were held in money market

accounts which are valued using Level inputs On August 2010 the Company entered into variable

interest rate term loan agreement the Term Loan and revolving facility agreement the Revolver The

proceeds from the Term Loan were used to extinguish portions of its then existing long-term debt including

98.4% of its convertible notes the Notes its revolving credit facility the Credit Agreement its loan

agreement with Cisco Systems Capital Corporation the Cisco Loan and its loan agreement with Lombard
North Central Plc the Lombard Loan Agreement The fair value of the Notes was estimated based on

Level inputs of the recent trading values as provided by third party The Company is exposed to interest

rate volatility with respect to the variable interest rates of its Term Loan and Revolver The Term Loan and the

Revolver bear interest at current market rates plus applicable margin The variable interest rate of the Term
Loan is subject to an interest rate cap as described in Note 10 The fair values of the Term Loan Revolver
Credit Agreement Lombard Loan Agreement and Cisco Loan none of which are traded on an active market
are estimated by considering the Companys credit rating current rates available to the Company for debt of

the same remaining maturities and the terms of the debt The fair value of the interest rate swap associated

with the Lombard Loan Agreement the interest rate cap associated with the Term Loan and the Companys
foreign currency hedges are valued using Level market value inputs as provided by third party adjusted for

the Companys credit risk

The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of the Companys long-term debt

and derivative instruments as of the dates indicated

Carrying Value

Assets

Interest rate cap ...... 470 470

Liabilities

Term Loan. $533262 $564610
Notes ........ 2887 3095
Lombard Loan Agreement

Cisco Loan ........
CreditRevolver
Interest rate swap

Foreign currency hedges

Carrying Value

305921 310069

55973 60881

20795 20667

3177 3177

116 116

December 31 2010

Fair Value

December 31 2009

Fair Value
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Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations The primary risks

managed by using derivative instruments are foreign currency exchange rate risk and variable interest rate

risk The fair value of the Companys cash flow hedges are recorded as assets or liabilities as applicable on

the balance sheet with the offset in accumulated other comprehensive loss To the extent that the periodic

changes in the fair value of the derivatives are not effective or if the hedge ceases to qualify for hedge

accounting the ineffective portions of the non-cash changes are recognized immediately in the consolidated

statement of operations in the period of the change As the hedged items impact earnings the related

hedging gains or losses are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and recognized in the

consolidated statements of operations

As of December 31 2010 the Company maintains an interest rate cap agreement with Bank of America N.A

to cap the three month Eurodollar interest rate paid on portion of the Term Loan For further information

regarding the Companys derivatives please refer to Note 10

Assets Held Under Capital Lease

The Company leases certain of its property and equipment under capital lease agreements The assets held

under capital lease and related obligations are recorded at the lesser of the present value of aggregate

future minimum lease payments including estimated bargain purchase options or the fair value of the

assets held under capital lease Such assets are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the leases or the

estimated useful lives of the assets which typically range from two to fifteen years

Operating Leases

The Company has various operating leases for property and equipment Terms of equipment leases typically

range from three to five years and terms of property leases typically range from one to fifteen years The

Companys property leases generally include rent increases and in certain cases rent holidays which are

recorded on straight-line basis over the underlying lease terms

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records asset retirement obligations for estimated costs to remove leasehold improvements

and return leased facilities to original condition The fair value of the obligation is assessed as the present

value of the expected future payments to perform these activities discounted using credit adjusted

interest rate The associated costs of the asset retirement obligation are capitalized and depreciated over

the related leasehold improvements lease term

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives the majority of its revenue from recurring revenue streams consisting primarily of

hosting services which includes managed hosting and colocation and network services The Company

recognizes revenue for these services as they are provided Installation fees and related costs are deferred

and recognized ratably over the life of the client contract Fees for migration services are recognized as

those services are performed Revenue is recognized when the related service has been provided there is

persuasive evidence of an arrangement the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured

In addition the Company has service level commitments pursuant to individual client contracts with certain of

its clients To the extent that such service levels are not achieved or are otherwise disputed due to performance

or service issues or other service interruptions or conditions the Company estimates the amount of credits to

be issued and records reduction to revenue with corresponding increase in the allowance for credits and

uncollectibles In the event that the Company provides credits or payments to clients related to service level

claims the Company may recover such costs through third party insurance agreements Insurance proceeds

received under these agreements are recorded as an offset to previously recorded revenue reductions

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes costs of facility rentals utilities circuit costs and other operating costs for hosting

space costs of leasing local access lines to connect clients to our Points of Presence PoPs leasing
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backbone circuits to interconnect our PoPs indefeasible rights of use operations and maintenance and
salaries and related benefits for engineering service delivery and provisioning client service consulting

services and operations personnel who maintain our network monitor network performance resolve service

issues and install new sites Cost of revenue excludes depreciation amortization and accretion and includes

non-cash equity-based compensation

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company calculates the fair value of total equity-based compensation for stock options and restricted

preferred units using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which utilizes certain assumptions and
estimates that have material impact on the amount of total compensation cost recognized in the

Companys consolidated financial statements Total equity-based compensation costs for restricted stock

units and restricted stock awards are calculated based on the market value of the Companys common stock

on the date of grant An additional assumption is made on the number of awards expected to forfeit prior

to vesting which decreases the amount of total expense recognized This assumption is evaluated and
the estimate is revised on quarterly or as needed basis Total equity-based compensation is amortized

to non-cash equity-based compensation expense over the vesting or performance period of the award as

applicable which typically ranges from three to four years

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and
2008 the Company expensed $6.2 million $3.9 million and $4.3 million respectively in advertising costs

Foreign Currency

Results of operations of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are translated from the applicable functional

currency to the U.S Dollar using average exchange rates during the reporting period while assets and
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the reporting date Resulting gains or losses from

translating foreign currency financial statements are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss

separate component of stockholders equity Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recorded

in the consolidated statements of operations For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the

Company recorded foreign currency transaction losses of $0.2 million and $0.4 million respectively For the

year ended December 31 2008 the Company recorded foreign currency transaction gain of $3.3 million

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method which provides for the establishment of

deferred tax assets and liabilities for the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and for income tax purposes applying the enacted

statutory tax rates in effect for the years in which differences are expected to reverse Valuation allowances

are established when it is more likely than not that recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized With the

exception of the net deferred tax position on the post-acquisition operations of Fusepoint Inc the Company
has provided full valuation allowance on deferred tax assets arising primarily from tax loss carryforwards and

other potential tax benefits because the future realization of such benefit is uncertain As result to the extent

that those benefits are realized in future periods they will favorably affect net income or loss

Loss per Share

The Company computes basic loss per common share by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period excluding unvested restricted stock awards subject to

cancellation Diluted loss per common share is computed using the weighted-average number of common
shares and if dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period Potential common shares

represent the incremental common shares issuable for stock option and restricted preferred unit exercises

unvested restricted stock units and restricted stock awards that are subject to repurchase or cancellation and
conversion of debt securities The Company calculates the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options restricted

preferred units restricted stock units and restricted stock awards on loss per share by application of the treasury

stock method The dilutive effect from convertible securities is calculated by application of the if-converted

method The Company had no dilutive securities for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
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The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per common share

Years Ended December 31

_____
2010 2009 2008

Loss from continuing operations net of income taxes ..... $54020 $20846 $21966

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 61

Net loss $53959 $20846 $21966

Weighted-average shares outstanding basic 55312 53786 53317

Effect of dilutive securities1

Stock options

Restricted preferred units

Restricted stock units and restricted stock awards

Weighted-average shares outstanding diluted 55312 53786 53317

Basic loss per common share

Loss from continuing operations 0.98 0.39 0.41

Income from discontinued operations

Net loss 0.98 0.39 0.41

Diluted loss per common share

Loss from continuing operations 0.98 0.39 0.41

Income from discontinued operations

Net loss 0.98 0.39 0.41

For the year ended December 31 2010 the effects of including the 0.04 million incremental shares associated with the

convertible notes and the assumed conversion of 5.2 million equity instruments into common stock were anti-dilutive and

therefore excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per common share For the year ended December 31 2009 the

effects of including the 4.9 million incremental shares associated with the convertible notes and the assumed conversion

of 6.7 million equity instruments into common stock was anti-dilutive and therefore excluded from the calculation of

diluted loss per common share

As of December 31 2010 the Company had 3.2 million stock options and 2.0 million shares of restricted stock units and

restricted stock awards outstanding As of December 31 2009 the Company had 5.5 million stock options 0.2 million

restricted preferred units and 1.0 million shares of restricted stock units and restricted stock awards outstanding

As of December 31 2010 there were no outstanding restricted preferred units

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from

such estimates and assumptions Estimates used in the Companys consolidated financial statements include

among others the allowance for credits and uncollectibles and assumptions used to value equity-based

compensation awards

NOTE RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2010 new accounting guidance on disclosures about supplementary pro forma information

for business combinations was issued The guidance amends existing disclosure criteria specifying that if

public entity presents comparative financial statements it should disclose revenue and earnings of the

combined entity as though the business combination occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior

year annual reporting period only The guidance also expands the supplemental pro forma disclosures to

include descriptions of the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly

attributable to the business combination that are included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings

The guidance is prospective and is effective for business combinations occurring after January 2011
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As the new guidance is disclosure only adoption will not have material effect on the Companys
consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

NOTE 4ACQUISITION OF FUSEPOINT INC

On June 16 2010 the Company completed its acquisition of Fusepoint Inc Fusepoint an independent

provider of outsourced managed IT and infrastructure services to mid-market and larger enterprises in

Canada With the acquisition of Fusepoint the Company obtained hosting assets in three data centers

which are located in Toronto Vancouver and Montreal

The Company acquired Fusepoint for $121.8 million in cash after adjustment for estimated working capital

and debt levels At the closing $12.5 million of the purchase price was placed in escrow for possible

application against the working capital adjustment certain tax liabilities and indemnification claims that may
be made in the first year following closing The Company funded the acquisition through available cash on

hand and an additional $110.0 million of debt through the utilization of increased borrowing capacity under

the Companys revolving credit facility which was amended and upsized to $150.0 million The acquisition

has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting Acquisition and integration related costs

of $5.1 million were included in the Companys consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31 2010 The Company finalized all valuation and acquisition accounting in 2010

Allocation of Purchase Price

The following presents the purchase price for the acquisition of Fusepoint which was subject to adjustment

based upon the difference between the estimated net working capital and debt transferred on the date

of closing and the actual amount of net working capital and debt transferred on the date of closing The

purchase price was finalized on August 26 2010

Aggregate cash purchase price for the acquisition $124500

Working capital adjustment 2705
Purchase price 121795

Of the $121.8 million purchase price $110.0 million was funded through borrowings on the Companys then

existing revolving credit facility and the remaining $11.8 million through available cash on hand

The following presents the purchase price allocation including goodwill and intangible assets based on

the fair values of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities of Fusepoint as of the date of acquisition

June 16 2010

Current assets 15002

Property and equipment net 23729

Goodwill 73971

Intangible assets 22519

Other noncurrent assets 1164

Current liabilities 6786
Capital lease obligations net of current portion 5640
Other non-current liabilities 2164
Purchase price 121795

Less cash assumed in acquisition 9005
Purchase price net $112790

The intangible assets acquired consisted of the client relationships of Fusepoint assumed through the

acquisition The excess of the purchase price over net tangible and intangible assets acquired resulted in

goodwill of $74.0 million which represents the Companys ability to implement operational synergies the
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value of the expansion into new markets and the acquired workforce of Fusepoint The goodwill is not

expected to be deductible for U.S income tax purposes All assets acquired including goodwill are included

in the Companys hosting segment

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2010 include $21.0 million and

$1.7 million of revenue and net loss from continuing operations respectively which reflect the operating

results of Fusepoint since the date of acquisition The following unaudited pro forma information presents

summary of the combined results of operations of the Company and of Fusepoint for the periods

presented as if the acquisition had occurred on January 2009 along with certain pro forma adjustments

These pro forma adjustments give effect to the incremental interest expense incurred by the Company with

the assumption of additional debt to finance the acquisition and the amortization of the acquired intangible

asset The results of operations for Fusepoints application services business have been excluded from this

unaudited pro forma information as this business was sold in December 2010 The following unaudited pro

forma information has been prepared for comparative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the

results of operations as they would have been had the acquisition occurred on the assumed date nor is it

necessarily an indication of future operating results

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Revenue 951191 $907550

Cost of revenue 509866 496976

Selling general and administrative expenses 229162 209587

Income from continuing operations 24884 38829

Net loss from continuing operations 61271 28957

NOTE 5DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On June 16 2010 the Company acquired Fusepoint as described in Note As part of this transaction the

Company acquired Fusepoints applications services business FAS which the Company did not consider

core to its future operations and sold on December 13 2010 for $1.5 million of cash proceeds FAS which was

part of the Companys hosting segment provides service from two locations Montreal and Quebec City

both of which provide clients with the design development integration and maintenance of mission critical

e-business applications The Company recognized gain of $0.1 million on the sale of FAS in the year ended

December 31 2010 which was primarily related to the excess of cash proceeds received over the net book

value No gains or losses on the fair value were recorded on the Companys financial statements prior to the

sale as FAS was recorded through acquisition accounting at its estimated fair value The results of operations

for FAS have been classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations and

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31 2010

NOTE 6PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table presents property and equipment by major category as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

2010 2009

Facilities and leasehold improvements 858199 719597

Communications and data center equipment 561545 543908

Software 141861 103498

Office equipment 31633 27572

1593238 1394575

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 749437 610723

Property and equipment net 843801 783852

Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was $174.4 million $146.9 million and

$129.8 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively
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The following table presents property and equipment held under capital and financing method leases by

major category which represent components of property and equipment included in the preceding table

as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

2010 2009
Facilities and leasehold improvements 157478 157478

Communications and data center equipment 95282 105093

252760 262571

Less accumulated amortization 126229 120386

Property and equipment held under capital and

financing method leases net 126531 142185

As described further in Note the Company maintains master lease agreement with Cisco Systems

Capital Corporation under which the Company acquired $3.2 million and $0.9 million of equipment during

the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Amortization expense for assets held under capital and financing method leases was $19.6 million

$14.7 million and $14.2 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

NOTE 7PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

The following table presents the components of prepaids and other current and

December 31 2010 and 2009

non-current assets as of

December 31

2009___________ 2010

Prepaids and other current assets

Prepaid maintenance 13407 $8632

Prepaid rent 723 229

Prepaid insurance 1488 1533

Deferred install costs 11103 7202

Other prepaids 3238 2318

Other current assets 2400 1303

Total prepaids and other current assets 32359 21217

Other non-current assets

Deferred financing costs 11142 $6596
Other deferred costs 4582 2644
Non-current prepaids 3126 1297

Other non-current assets 7815 2179

Total other non-current assets 26665 12716

NOTE 8GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the Companys goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

2010 2009

Goodwill

Hosting 75883

Intangible assets

Client relationships 36261 13160

Other intangible assets 2437 2437

38698 15597

Accumulated amortization 19158 15193

Intangible assets net 19540 404

Total goodwill and intangible assets net $95423 404

70 2010 ANNUAL REPORT



As described in Note as part of the acquisition of Fusepoint the Company recorded $74.0 million of

goodwill which represented the Companys ability to implement operational synergies the value of the

expansion into new markets and the acquired workforce of Fusepoint and $22.5 million of intangible assets

which represent the client relationships assumed through the acquisition Both the goodwill and the intangible

assets from the Fusepoint acquisition are denominated in Canadian Dollars and as such are subject to foreign

currency fluctuations The Companys foreign currency translation gain and losses including those related to

goodwill and other intangible assets are component of other comprehensive loss

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $3.9 million $0.3 million and $0.5 million for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Estimated future amortization expense related to these

intangible assets is as follows

2011 6267

2012 5371

2013

2014 3288

2015 213

Thereafter

Total future amortization of intangible assets $19540

NOTE 9LONG-TERM DEBT

The following table presents the carrying value of long-term debt as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

2010 2009

Term loan net of current portion of $5500 and $0 respectively 527762

Convertible notes 2887 305921

Lombard loan agreement 55973

Cisco loan agreement net of current portion of $0 and $6600 respectively 14195

Revolver

Credit agreement

Long-term debt $530649 $376089

Credit Facilities

Term loan and revolver On August 2010 the Company entered into senior secured credit facilities consisting

of $550.0 million six-year term loan facility the Term Loan and $75.0 million three-and-a-half-year

revolving credit facility the Revolver with group of lenders for which Banc of America Securities LLC and

Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc served as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners and Credit Suisse

Securities USA LLC and Suntrust Robinson Humphrey Inc served as arrangers and joint bookrunners The

Term Loan and Revolver contain various affirmative negative and financial covenants which are measured on

quarterly or annual basis and restrict the ability of the Company to create liens incur additional indebtedness

and make capital expenditures among other things except as permitted by the terms of the agreement and

require maintenance of certain financial measures at defined levels The Companys obligations under the

Term Loan and the Revolver and the guarantees of the guarantors are secured by first-priority security

interest in substantially all of the Companys assets interest in assets and proceeds thereof The Company

may elect to pay interest on base or Eurodollar rate plus applicable margin The Term Loan requires 0.25%

quarterly principal amortization payments beginning December 31 2010 with the remaining balance payable

on the maturity date August 2016 The Company incurred 3.0% or $16.5 million original issue discount

associated with the Term Loan The Revolver contains $40.0 million letter of credit provision of which

$12.4 million had been issued as of December 31 2010 Unused commitments on the Revolver are subject to an

annual commitment fee of 0.50% and fee is applied to outstanding letters of credit of 4.75% The applicable

interest rate on Eurodollar loans under the Revolver would have been 5.01% at December 31 2010 however

there were no outstanding borrowings As of December 31 2010 the applicable interest rate for the Term

Loan was 6.75% including the Eurodollar floor of 1.75% and outstanding borrowings totaled $548.6 million

Unamortized original issue discount of $15.4 million on the Term Loan remained as of December 31 2010
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Credit agreement In August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction the Company repaid the $110.0 million

outstanding plus an additional $1.5 million in fees and terminated the Companys amended and restated

credit agreement with Wells Fargo Capital Finance the Credit Agreement The Credit Agreement was
amended in June 2010 to increase the available borrowing capacity in order to fund the purchase price of

the Fusepoint acquisition Under the amended terms of the Credit Agreement the Company had borrowing

capacity of $150.0 million which included $40.0 million letter of credit provision Borrowings under the

Credit Agreement could be used to fund working capital acquisitions capital expenditures and other general

corporate purposes The Company elected to pay interest on three month LIBOR rate plus an applicable

margin The interest rate at the time of extinguishment was 6.50% With the June 2010 amendment of the

Credit Agreement the Company incurred $2.6 million of additional debt issuance costs the majority of

which were recognized as loss on debt extinguishment during the year ended December 31 2010 As of

December 31 2010 there were approximately $3.5 million of outstanding letters of credit remaining with the

terminated Credit Agreement provider which are backed by letters of credit issued under the Revolver

Loan agreement and lease facility The Company maintained term loan and security agreement the Loan

Agreement and maintains master lease agreement the Lease Agreement with Cisco Systems Capital

Corporation The Loan Agreement provided for borrowings of up to $33.0 million at an annual interest rate

of 6.50% to purchase network equipment which were secured by first-priority security interest in the

equipment The Lease Agreement provides lease facility the Lease Facility to purchase equipment with

borrowings at the discretion of Cisco Systems Capital Corporation The effective interest rate on current

borrowings is 7.75% On August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction the Company repaid the

$16.9 million in borrowings outstanding on the Loan Agreement along with $0.1 million of interest and

$11.2 million of the $13.1 million outstanding leases under the Lease Facility There was $0.2 million loss on

debt extinguishment associated with the repayment of the leases As of December 31 2010 the Company
had $2.9 million borrowings outstanding under Lease Facility

Lombard loan agreement On August 2010 as part of refinancing transaction the Company repaid

and terminated on behalf of its subsidiary SAVVIS UK Limited SAVVIS UK the loan agreement the
Lombard Loan Agreement it maintained with Lombard North Central Plc Lombard The Lombard Loan

Agreement had five-year term and required monthly interest installments for the full term and quarterly

principal installments that were to begin in 2011 The Company had guaranteed the obligations of SAVVIS

UK under the Lombard Loan Agreement and the obligations were secured by first priority security interest

in substantially all of SAVVIS UKs then existing data center assets and certain future assets The Company
maintained letter of credit of $21.2 million which was released with the termination of the agreement

total of $55.8 million or 35.0 million was paid to Lombard which included both the outstanding

principal and accrued and unpaid interest There were 0.4 million or approximately $0.6 million of

unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Lombard Loan Agreement which were recognized as

loss on debt extinguishment during the year ended December 31 2010

Convertible Notes

In May 2007 the Company issued $345.0 million aggregate principal amount of 3.0% Convertible Senior

Notes due May 15 2012 the Notes Interest is payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15 of each year

and commenced November 15 2007

The Notes are governed by an Indenture dated May 2007 between the Company as issuer and The Bank of

New York as trustee the Indenture The Indenture does not contain any financial covenants or restrictions on

the payment of dividends the incurrence of senior debt or other indebtedness or the issuance or repurchase

of securities by the Company The Notes are unsecured and are effectively subordinated to the Companys
existing or future secured debts to the extent of the assets securing such debt

Upon conversion holders will receive at the Companys election cash shares of the Companys common
stock or combination thereof However the Company may at any time irrevocably elect for the remaining

term of the Notes to satisfy its conversion obligation in cash up to 100% of the principal amount of the

Notes converted with any remaining amount to be satisfied at the Companys election in cash shares of its

common stock or combination thereof
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The initial conversion rate is 14.2086 shares of common stock per $1000 principal amount of Notes subject

to adjustment This represents an initial conversion price of approximately $70.38 per share of common

stock Holders of the Notes may convert their Notes prior to maturity upon the occurrence of specified

circumstances which includes certain trading levels of the Companys common stock the occurrence of

certain distributions or corporate events such as distribution to stockholders consolidation merger or sale

of all or substantially all of the Companys assets or any time on or after February 15 2012 Upon conversion

due to the conversion formulas associated with the Notes if the Companys stock is trading at levels

exceeding the conversion price per share of common stock and if the Company elects to settle the obligation

in cash additional consideration beyond the $345.0 million of gross proceeds received would be required

At December 31 2010 the Notes did not meet any of the criteria to allow the Notes to be redeemed at the

holders discretion and are therefore not considered redeemable or convertible

The Notes contain settlement features that require the Company to account for the liability and equity

components of the Notes separately The Company has calculated the fair value of the liability component

using an interest rate of 8.36% per annum

On July 2010 the Company commenced tender offer to purchase any and all of the outstanding Notes for

an amount in cash equal to $990 per $1000 principal amount of the Notes validly tendered and accepted

for purchase plus accrued and unpaid interest up to but not including the date of purchase The tender

offer expired August 2010 and the Company purchased and extinguished 98.4% of the $345.0 million

outstanding principal amount of the Notes or $339.4 million for $336.0 million An additional $2.2 million

was paid for accrued and unpaid interest On September 14 2010 at $990 per $1000 principal amount the

Company purchased and extinguished $2.5 million of the remaining outstanding principal amount of the

Notes for $2.5 million including accrued and unpaid interest As of December 31 2010 $3.1 million principal

amount of the Notes remained outstanding Of the $338.5 million paid $25.0 million was attributed to the

reacquisition of the equity component of the Notes As result of both transactions the Company recognized

loss on debt extinguishment of $4.3 million which represents the $2.5 million unamortized debt issuance

costs related to the extinguished Notes the $1.4 million difference between the fair value attributed to the

liability component and the carrying value of the Notes at extinguishment and the $0.4 million fees paid to

third parties for the facilitation of the transactions

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts of the equity and liability components of the Notes

along with the unamortized discount and net carrying amount of the liability component

December 31

2010 2009

Equity component 654 72609

Liability component

Principal amount 3106 $345000

Unamortized discount 219 39079
Net carrying amount $2887 305921

The following table summarizes the amount of interest cost recognized for the periods relating to both the

contractual interest and the accretion of the discount of the liability component of the Notes

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Interest at 3% stated coupon rate $6196 10350 10350

Discount amortization 8989 14320 13194

Total interest expense 15185 24670 $23544

The debt issuance costs related to the Notes net of accumulated amortization were $0.02 million as of

December 31 2010

SavvEs nc



Debt Covenants

Under the terms of the Companys Term Loan and Revolver agreements we are required to comply with

certain financial covenant ratios consisting of quarter covenants for maximum total leverage and minimum
fixed charge coverage ratios and annual maximum capital expenditures As of December 31 2010 the

Company was in compliance with such financial covenants

The provisions of the Companys debt agreements contain covenants including but not limited to
maintaining specified financial conditions restricting or limiting the Companys ability to incur more debt
issue guarantees pay dividends make capital expenditures and repurchase stock subject to financial

measures and other conditions The Company was in compliance with all such covenants as of and during
the year ended December 31 2010 and anticipates compliance with all covenants for at least the next

twelve months However the ability to comply with these provisions may be affected by events beyond the

Companys control The breach of any of these covenants could result in default under the Companys debt

agreements and could trigger cross defaults and acceleration of repayment

Loss on Debt Extinguishment

As result of the August 2010 refinancing transaction and September 14 2010 Notes retirement the

Company recognized an $8.7 million loss on debt extinguishment during the year ended December 31 2010
This loss on debt extinguishment consisted of $6.1 million unamortized deferred financing costs $1.4 million

loss representing the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the Notes and $1.2 million in

costs primarily related to bank and legal fees

Future Principal Payments

As of December 31 2010 aggregate future principal payments of long-term debt were $5.5 million

$8.6 million $5.5 million $5.5 million $5.5 million and $521.1 million for the years ended December 31 2011

2012 2013 2014 2015 and thereafter respectively Depending on settlement options at the Companys
election the Notes which mature in May 2012 may be settled in cash shares or combination thereof

The weighted-average cash interest rate applicable to outstanding borrowings was 6.7% and 3.2% as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

NOTE 10- DERIVATIVES

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations The primary risks

managed by using derivative instruments are foreign currency exchange rate risk and variable interest rate

risk The fair value of the Companys cash flow hedges are recorded as assets or liabilities as applicable on
the balance sheet with the offset in accumulated other comprehensive loss To the extent that the periodic

changes in the fair value of the derivatives are not effective or if the hedge ceases to qualify for hedge

accounting the ineffective portion of the non-cash changes are recognized immediately in the consolidated

statement of operations in the period of the change As the hedged items impact earnings the related

hedging gains or losses are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and recognized in the

consolidated statements of operations

Foreign Currency Hedges

The Company engages in foreign currency hedging transactions to mitigate its foreign currency exchange risk

The Company had recorded foreign currency hedge liability of $0.1 million as of December 31 2009 There

were no foreign currency hedges in place as of December 31 2010

Interest Rate Swap

On August 2010 the Company terminated its interest rate swap agreement the Swap Agreement with

National Westminster Bank Plc NatWest for 2.0 million or approximately $3.2 million In January 2009
the Company had dedesignated its existing interest rate swap and redesignated new interest rate swap
by entering into the Swap Agreement At the time of dedesignation the fair value of the existing interest
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rate swap was 2.5 million which represented the financing element of the Swap Agreement and was to

be amortized to earnings as the originally hedged cash flows affect earnings The Swap Agreement hedged

the monthly interest payments incurred and paid under the Lombard Loan Agreement during the three year

period beginning January 2009 and ending December 31 2011 Under the terms of the Swap Agreement

the Company owed monthly interest to NatWest at fixed LIBOR rate of 5.06% and received from NatWest

payments based on the same variable notional amount at the one month LIBOR interest rate set at the

beginning of each month The Swap Agreement effectively fixed the interest payments paid under the

Lombard Loan Agreement at 7.86% During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recognized

$0.8 million gain on hedge ineffectiveness in the consolidated statement of operations which was offset by

$0.8 million in amortization of the financing element of the Swap Agreement At settlement the market value

of the interest rate swap was non-current liability of 2.0 million or approximately $3.2 million The Company

recognized loss on settlement of 2.0 million or approximately $3.1 million in other income and expense

Interest Rate Cap

On September 30 2010 the Company as required by the Term Loan entered into an interest rate cap hedge

agreement the Cap Agreement with Bank of America N.A BOA The Cap Agreement caps the three

month Eurodollar interest rate paid to BOA on beginning notional principal amount of $155.0 million of

Term Loan outstanding During the three year period beginning October 2010 and ending October 2013

the notional amount of the Cap Agreement declines by the 0.25% quarterly principal amortization of the

Term Loan as it applies to the original notional principal amount The Cap Agreement effectively caps the

interest rates paid to BOA on the then outstanding capped notional principal amount of the Term Loan at

3.0% during year one 3.5% during year two and 4.0% during year three During the year ended December 31

2010 the Company did not recognize any gains or losses on the Cap Agreement The fair value of the Cap

Agreement was $0.5 million at December 31 2010

The following table presents the terms of the Cap Agreement

December 31 October October October

______ ______ _____
2010 2011 2012 ____

2013

Cap Agreement

Notional amount $155000 $153450 $151900 $150738

Interest rate 3.0% 3.5% 4.0% 4.0%

Balance Sheet Presentation

The Companys interest rate cap is presented within other current assets The foreign currency hedges and

the interest rate swap were presented on net basis in other current or non-current accrued liabilities

The following table summarizes the fair value of the derivatives on net basis

December 31

2010 2009

Assets

Interest rate cap $470

Liabilities

Interest rate swap 3177

Foreign currency hedges 116

$470 $3293

Income Statement Presentation

Realized gains and losses represent amounts related to the settlement of derivative instruments which are

reported on the consolidated statement of operations in other income and expense All of the Companys

derivative instruments are cash flow hedges as such unrealized gains and losses which represent the

change in fair value of the derivative instruments are recorded as component of other comprehensive loss
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The following table presents the Companys realized gains and losses on derivative instruments

Years Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008

Realized gains losses

Interest rate swap $4568 $937
Interest rate cap

Foreign currency hedges 167 167

$4735 $770

The year ended December 31 2010 includes the $3.1 million realized loss on the settlement of the interest rate swap

NOTE 11CAPITAL AND FINANCING METHOD LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The following table presents future minimum lease payments under capital and financing method leases as
of December 31 2010

Years Ended December 31

2011
41814

2012
39882

2013 37787
2014

37666
2015

37812
Thereafter

175005
Total capital and financing method lease obligations 369966

Less amount representing interest 191676
Less current portion 12381

Capital and financing method lease obligations net 165909

Financing method lease obligation payments represent interest payments over the term of the lease as

such the table above excludes $50.6 million deferred gain that will be realized upon termination of the

lease in accordance with accounting rules for financing method leases

In December 2010 the Company signed lease agreement for new data center facility located in

Piscataway New Jersey The approximately $35.4 million of capital lease obligation related to this

16 year agreement are not included in the above table as payments do not commence until the data

center construction is complete

NOTE 12OPERATING LEASES

The following table presents future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of

December 31 2010

Years Ended December 31
______________________________

2011
74418

2012 67968
2013

61253
2014 46678
2015 43073
Thereafter

2975i2

Total future minimum lease payments $590902

Rental expense under non-cancelable operating leases was $80.2 million $81.3 million and $71.5 million for

the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively
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NOTE 13OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

The following table presents the components of other current and non-current accrued liabilities as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 December 31

2010 2009

Other current accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue 25129 20829

Wages employee benefits and related taxes 22024 18470

Taxes payable 3365 4221

Other current liabilities 33583 24794

Total other current accrued liabilities 84101 68314

Other non-current accrued liabilities

Asset retirement obligations 30567 29653

Deferred rent 17524 16622

Acquired contractual obligations in excess of fair value and other 12131 13823

Deferred revenue 13873 8728

Other non-current liabilities 842 7626

Total other non-current accrued liabilities 74937 76452

Acquired contractual obligations in excess of fair value and other as of December 31 2010 and 2009 represent

amounts remaining from acquisitions related to fair market value adjustments of acquired facility leases and

idle capacity on acquired long-term maintenance contracts that the Company did not intend to utilize

NOTE 14- ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company records asset retirement obligations ARO5 related to contractual requirements of the

Company to restore and remove certain leasehold improvements Accordingly the Company records

corresponding increases to the carrying values of the related long-lived assets at the time lease agreement

is executed The Company depreciates the leasehold improvements using the straight-line method and

recognizes accretion expense over their estimated useful lives

The following table presents reconciliation of AROs as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

____ ___________
2010 2009

Balance at beginning of year 29653 27750

Liabilities incurred or acquired 213 90

Liabilities settled 1429 152

Revisions in expected cash flows 22
Accretion expense 2130 1987

Balance at end of year $30567 $29653

NOTE 15COMMITMENTS CONTINGENCIES AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Companys client contracts generally span multiple periods which results in the Company entering

into arrangements with various suppliers of communications services that require the Company to

maintain minimum spending levels some of which increase over time to secure favorable pricing terms

The Companys remaining aggregate minimum spending levels allocated ratably over the terms of such

contracts are $41.8 million $13.9 million $9.7 million $8.3 million $8.3 million and $43.7 million during the

years ended December 31 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 and thereafter respectively Should the Company

not meet the minimum spending levels in any given term decreasing termination liabilities representing

percentage of the remaining contractual amounts may become immediately due and payable Furthermore

certain of these termination liabilities are potentially subject to reduction should the Company experience

the loss of major client or suffer loss of revenue from general economic downturn Before considering

the effects of any potential reductions for the business downturn provisions if the Company had terminated

all of these agreements as of December 31 2010 the maximum termination liability would have been

$125.7 million To mitigate this exposure at times the Company aligns its minimum spending commitments

with client revenue commitments for related services
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In the normal course of business the Company is party to certain guarantees and financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk as they are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
such as letters of credit indemnifications and operating leases under which certain facilities are leased
The agreements associated with such guarantees and financial instruments mature at various dates through
January 2031 and may be renewed as circumstances warrant As discussed in Note the Company
had $15.9 million in letters of credit outstanding at December 31 2010 which are pledged as collateral

to primarily support certain facility leases and utility agreements Also in connection with its 2007 sale
of the assets related to its content delivery network services the Company agreed to indemnify the

purchaser should it incur certain losses due to breach of the Companys representations and warranties
The Company has not incurred liability relating to these indemnification provisions in the past and
management believes that the likelihood of any future payout relating to these provisions is remote As such
the Company has not recorded liability during any period related to these indemnification provisions

The Companys guarantees and financial instruments are valued based on the estimated amount of exposure
and the likelihood of performance being required To managements knowledge no claims have been made
against these guarantees and financial instruments nor does it expect exposure to material losses resulting
therefrom As result the Company determined such guarantees and financial instruments do not have

significant value and has not recorded any related amounts in its consolidated financial statements

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and actions arising in the normal course of its business
While the results of all such proceedings and actions cannot be predicted management believes based on
facts known to management today that the ultimate outcome of all such proceedings and actions will not have

material adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

The Company has employment agreements with key executive officers that contain provisions with regard to

base salary bonus equity-based compensation and other employee benefits These agreements also provide
for severance benefits in the event of employment termination or change in control of the Company

NOTE 16ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The following table presents accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31

____ ____ 2010 2009
Foreign currency translation $12625 $15938
Unrealized loss on derivatives 17 3195

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $12642 19133

includes foreign currency cash flow hedges interest rate swap and interest rate cap

NOTE 17EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

As of December 31 2010 the Company had two equity-based compensation plans the Amended and
Restated 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan and the 1999 Stock Option Plan as amended collectively

referred to as the Plans The Plans provide for the grant of stock options stock appreciation rights restricted

stock unrestricted stock stock units dividend equivalent rights and cash awards Any of these awards may
be granted as incentives to reward and encourage individual contributions to the Company As of December
31 2010 the Plans had 15.9 million shares authorized for grants of equity-based instruments of which

5.2 million shares were associated with outstanding instruments Stock options generally expire 10 years
from the date of grant and have graded vesting over four years Restricted stock awards granted to non-

employee directors have graded vesting over three years and awards granted to certain employees have

graded vesting over periods between one and two years Restricted stock units granted to certain employees
have performance features and graded vesting over periods up to four years Restricted preferred units

granted to certain executives have graded vesting over four years The Company generally issues new shares

of common stock upon exercise of equity-based compensation awards

Equity-based compensation expense is recognized on straight-line basis over the vesting period for equity
based awards The Company recognized total non-cash equity-based compensation expense of $25.7 million
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$29.1 million and $23.0 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The

majority of these amounts were reflected in selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations with the remainder included in cost of revenue As of December 31

2010 the Company had $28.9 million net of estimated forfeitures of unrecognized compensation cost related

to unvested equity-based compensation that is expected to be ultimately recognized which includes

2.0 million restricted stock units 0.02 million shares of restricted common stock and 3.2 million stock options

with weighted-average exercise price of $12.65 per common share As the restricted preferred units have an

exercise price the Company accounts for them as stock appreciation rights The unrecognized compensation

cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.6 years

The following table presents information associated with the Companys non-cash equity-based compensation

awards for the year ended December 31 2010 in thousands except weighted-average figures

Year Ended December 31 2010 _____
Options

Weighted- Weighted- Total

Restricted Average Average Intrinsic

Stock Exercise Remaining Value of

Units
_________ __________

Price Life Options

Outstanding at beginning of year 712

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Cancelled

Outstanding at end of year

Exercisable at end of year

Total intrinsic value represents the value of the Companys closing stock price on the last trading day of the

fiscal period in excess of the exercise price multiplied by the number of options outstanding or exercisable

Total intrinsic value of options and restricted preferred units RPUs at the time of exercise was $18.6 million

$0.2 million and $3.1 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

During the year ended December 31 2010 certain restricted stock units RSUs and restricted stock awards

RSA5 vested and were exchanged or exercised by employees for shares of common stock Under the terms

of the award agreements the Company withheld 0.2 million shares of common stock upon vesting to satisfy

minimum employee tax withholding requirements that arose in connection with such vesting As result the

Company cash funded the statutory minimum tax withholdings which resulted in reduction of additional

paid-in capital of $3.3 million for the year ended December 31 2010

During 2010 the Company granted 0.8 million stock options under the 2003 Plan with total compensation

expense of $7.2 million to be recognized over the vesting period using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model Compensation expense associated with stock options was $13.0 million $18.4 million and $11.6 million

in the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The following table presents the Companys assumptions utilized in the Black-Scholes option pricing model

in the determination of the grant date fair value of stock options and RPUs

_____ _____
2010 _____ _____

Weighted-average fair value $9.26

Expected volatility 52.3% 81.73%

Risk-free interest rate 2.0% 3.5%

Expected option life in years 1.0 4.0

Dividend yield

Expected volatility is determined based on historical stock volatility over the expected term of the award

The risk-free interest rate is determined using an interest rate yield on U.S Treasury instruments with term

equivalent to the award at the date of grant The expected option life is the calculated term of options based

on historical employee exercise patterns experienced for similar awards The dividend yield is assumed to be

zero based on the Companys intent to not declare dividends in the foreseeable future

Restricted

Stock

319

22

293
17

________

24

1673

115

196
69

2005

and

Restricted

Preferred

Units

5706

778

2235
925
159

3165

1195

$12.28

15.60

20.03

15.10

12.29

12.65

12.13

8.01 years $41085

7.02 years 16292

Years Ended December 31

2009

$6.04

76.3% 80.3%

1.6% 2.1%

3.3 4.0

2008

$8.96

68.0% 77.5%

1.7% 2.9%

3.1 4.0
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Due to increases in forfeiture activity in 2008 the Company revised the forfeiture rate used to calculate non-cash

equity-based compensation expense As result the Company recorded cumulative adjustment of $12.2 million

of which $6.8 million related to 2006 and 2007 reducing non-cash equity-based compensation expense during the

year ended December 31 2008 An additional adjustment was made in the fourth quarter of 2009 resulting in

$2.2 million reduction of non-cash equity-based compensation expense during the year ended December 31 2009

In addition to granting stock options RSAs RSUs and RPUs the Company established an employee stock

purchase plan ESPP in 2007 that allows employees to purchase Company stock at specified discount
The Company recognized expense of $1.1 million $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the years ended
December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Shares purchased under the ESPP were 0.1 million

0.1 million and 0.1 million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

NOTE 18INCOME TAXES

The following table presents the components of loss from continuing operations before income taxes for

the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Years Ended December 31

______________ ________ 2010 2009 2008
Domestic operations 55420 14251 17865
Foreign operations 405 3866 1105

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 55015 18117 $18970

For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company had taxable income without ability to utilize NOL
carryforwards and accordingly recorded income tax expense of $3.0 million of which $2.0 million related

to alternative minimum taxes This amount was comprised of $1.2 million for federal taxes and $0.8 million

for state taxes For the year ended December 31 2009 the Company has taxable income without ability
to utilize NOL carryforwards and accordingly recorded income tax expense of $2.7 million of which

$2.4 million related to alternative minimum taxes This amount is comprised of $1.2 million for federal taxes
and $1.2 million for state taxes For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company has recorded an overall

income tax benefit of $1.0 million which is primarily attributable to the $1.1 million deferred tax benefit

recorded on the post-acquisition Fusepoint tax losses which are expected to be utilized in future periods

With the exception of the net deferred tax asset position on Fusepoint operations the Company maintains full

valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets arising primarily from NOL carryforwards and other tax attributes

because the future realization of such benefits is uncertain As result to the extent that those benefits are

realized in future periods they will favorably affect tax expense and net income The deferred tax assets on the

Companys legacy business including NOL and minimum tax credit carryforwards have been fully offset by
valuation allowance of $160.9 million and $132.7 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The following table presents the components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31
2010 and 2009

December 31

___________________ 2010 2009
Deferred income tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards 72635 65189
Deferred revenue 5387 6342
Accrued payroll 3477 2222
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3009 3141

Non-cash equity-based compensation 28387 22791
Fixed assets including leases 29944 28765
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward 4613 4681
Interest on convertible notes 85 15207
Other 13634 14790

Total deferred tax assets 161001 132714
Valuation allowance 160853 132714

Net deferred tax assets 148
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NOTE 19RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Company has 401k retirement savings plan for the benefit of qualified employees All active

employees at least 21 years of age are eligible to participate and may contribute portion of their

compensation to the plan The Company matched 50% of employee contributions up to maximum of

8% of total compensation in 2010 2009 and 2008 Company contributions under the plan vest over three

years The Company recorded $5.3 million $5.0 million and $4.9 million in employer matching contribution

expense during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code IRC limits the Companys ability to utilize its U.S NOL5 and

other attribute carryforwards against future U.S taxable income in the event of an ownership change

Management believes that ownership changes as defined by Section 382 of the IRC occurred in 2002

and 2007 and that Section 382 would restrict the utilization of pre-2003 NOLs to $4.6 million per year

Management has concluded that the 2007 tax ownership change should not affect the Companys ability

to utilize its post-2002 NOLs

As of December 31 2010 the Company had approximately $154.2 million in U.S NOLs scheduled to expire

between 2020 and 2030 of which $56.6 million is estimated to be subject to the Section 382 annual limitation

relating to the ownership change that occurred in 2002 and $62.1 million is estimated to be subject to the

Section 382 annual limitation relating to the ownership change that occurred in 2007 This carryforward

excludes $69.1 million of additional NOLs due to recognition limitations prescribed by equity-based

compensation guidance which are available from an income tax return perspective

As of December 31 2010 the Companys foreign subsidiaries have approximately $33.6 million in NOLs

primarily in the countries of Canada Switzerland the Netherlands Singapore Japan and Hong Kong each

having unlimited carryforward periods

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 income tax expense differed from the statutory

federal income tax expense as follows Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Federal tax benefit expense at corporate statutory rate 19446 6341 $6639
State tax benefit expense net of federal tax 2139 684 778

Change in valuation allowance primarily due to NOLs 16578 6564 5872

Change in valuation allowance alternative minimum taxes 76 2784 2108

Uncertain tax position adjustments 11 56 888

Foreign rate differential 197

Permanent items 3728 462 1545

Income tax benefit expense 995 2729 2996

The following table provides reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended December 31 2010

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008

1639 751

2010

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year 1583

Adjustments to unrecognized tax benefits

Tax positions taken in prior periods

Tax positions taken in the current period 11 56 888

Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year 1594 $1583 $1639

The Company has not expensed and does not maintain any accrual balances for interest and penalties

related to unrecognized tax benefits For future periods in which the Company may incur unrecognized tax

benefits or uncertainties the Company would classify any associated interest and penalties as component

of its income tax provision

The Companys income tax returns for all tax years remain open to examination by federal and state taxing

authorities due to the Companys NOLs In addition the Company is also subject to examination by local tax

authorities in certain foreign jurisdictions in which the Company has major operations
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NOTE 20INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC REPORTING

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information
is available that is evaluated on regular basis by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to

allocate resources to an individual segment and in assessing performance of the segment During the fourth

quarter of 2009 the Companys chief operating decision maker which is defined as the chief executive

officer began to manage the Companys business differently separating management by product and using
different information than was previously used As result the Company now has two reportable segments
based on services hosting and network Hosting services consist of colocation and managed hosting
services and provide the core facilities computing data storage and network infrastructure on which to run
business applications Network services are comprised of managed network services hosting area network
application transport and bandwidth services

Management of the Company evaluates the performance of the two segments primarily based on
revenue and adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA is defined as income from continuing operations before

depreciation amortization and accretion and non-cash equity-based compensation The Company uses

adjusted EBITDA as performance measure because they believe that such information is relevant

measure of companys operating performance and liquidity in their industry The calculation of adjusted
EBITDA is not specified by U.S generally accepted accounting principles The Companys calculation of

adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies

The follow table presents operating segment results for the years indicated and excludes the results of

the Companys discontinued operations

For the year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Revenue

Adjusted EBITDA

Hosting 261259 $239290 204831
Network 65743 67610 66297
Corporate other 95931 86877 86503

Total adjusted EBITDA 231071 $220023 184625

Capital Expenditures

Hosting 159307 96606
Network 28873 21372

Other capital expenditures 14374 14958
Total capital expenditures $202554 132936

corporate other adjusted EBITDA includes all general and administrative costs not directly associated with hosting
services or network services costs not directly associated with hosting services or network services include but are
not limited to acquisition and integration costs and costs related to the finance accounting legal human resources
and internal IT departments

In 2009 the Company began evaluating its business based on segmented product view and using different information
than was previously utilized Additionally the Company implemented new enterprise resource planning system in 2009
which allows the Company to track capital expenditures by segment Due to these factors the Company does not have
the necessary information to disclose cash capital expenditures by segment for the year ended December 31 2008
Other cash capital expenditures includes general office equipment capitalized costs and equipment related to

administrative space systems upgrades and any other capital expenditures not directly associated with the Companys
hosting or network segments

As the Companys segments are based on services with the exception of non-cash equity-based

compensation and depreciation amortization and accretion the components of cost of revenue can be

directly tied to the appropriate segment Total selling general and administrative costs can be broken

down into sales and marketing and general and administrative portion of sales and marketing expenses

Hosting

Network

Total revenue

673352

259632

$932984

607296

267118

874414

564509

292532

857041
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are directly related to specific service such as the direct sales forces and the remainder of the costs are

allocated to segments based on percentage of client installations or bookings as applicable during the

period and as result may fluctuate The majority of general and administrative costs are allocated to the

corporate other segment as the costs primarily relate to corporate groups such as finance legal human

resources and internal IT Less than 10% of the general and administrative costs can be attributed directly

to segment and these consist of costs for the Companys WAMNet engineering and cloud teams The

Company does not allocate the components of other income and expense or tax expense to segments

Total assets depreciation amortization and accretion non-cash equity-based compensation interest income

and expense and income tax expense by segment have not been disclosed by segment as the information is

not available to the Companys chief operating decision maker

The following table presents reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to income from continuing operations and

reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Years Ended December 31

2009 20082010

Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation

Income from continuing operations 24490 40067 26533

Depreciation amortization and accretion 180903 150854 135123

Non-cash equity-based compensation 25678 29102 22969

Adjusted EBITDA 231071 220023 $184625

Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss

from continuing operations before income taxes

Adjusted EBITDA 231071 $220023 184625

Depreciation amortization and accretion 180903 150854 135123

Non-cash equity-based compensation 25678 29102 22969

Interest income 126 226 3364

Interest expense 67571 57976 50450
Loss on debt extinguishment 8735
Other income expense 3325 434 1583

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 55015 18117 18970

The table below presents selected financial information for the Companys three geographic regions

Americas EMEA Europe Middle East and Africa and Asia as of and for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008
Years Ended December 31

2009 20082010

Revenue

Americas $756293 $724269 721742

EMEA 128781 110084 101303

Asia 47910 40061 33996

Total revenue $932984 $874414 $857041

December 31
20092010

Property and equipment net

Americas 701841 678163

EMEA 115745 82329

Asia 26215 23360

Property and equipment net $843801 $783852

For the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 revenue earned in the Americas represented

approximately 81% 83% and 84% of total revenue respectively Substantially all of the Companys other

non-current assets reside in the Americas geographic region
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NOTE 21QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

Year Ended December 31 2010 by quarter
First Second Third Fourth

Revenue $216587 $221756 $241901 $252740
Cost of revenue 119368 120221 131597 129563
Income from continuing operations 4763 2217 3469 14041
Loss from continuing operations 11349 13340 26225 3106
Income loss from discontinued operations 90 160

Net loss 11349 13430 26234 2946
Basic loss per share from continuing operations 0.21 0.24 0.47 0.06
Diluted loss per share from continuing operations 0.21 0.24 0.47 0.06

Year Ended December 31 2009 by quarter
First Second Third Fourth

Revenue $221523 $219861 213211 219819
Cost of revenue 120521 121441 117945 120428
Income from continuing operations 15598 9537 4514 10418
Loss from continuing operations 617 6174 9930 5359
Income loss from discontinued operations

Net loss 617 6174 9930 5359
Basic loss per share from continuing operations 0.01 0.12 0.18 0.10
Diluted loss per share from continuing operations 0.01 0.12 0.18 0.10

Excludes depreciation amortization and accretion which are reported separately and includes non-cash equity-based
compensation expense of $1.6 million $1.5 million $1.5 million $1.3 million $1.5 million $1.5 million $1.5 million and $1.0 million

for the first second third and fourth quarters of 2010 and 2009 respectively

Includes non-cash equity-based compensation expense of $8.5 million $6.5 million $5.4 million $5.2 million $6.9 million

$7.8 million $8.5 million and $6.0 million for the first second third and fourth quarters of 2010 and 2009 respectively

Quarterly and annual computations are prepared independently Therefore the sum of per share amounts for the quarters may
not agree exactly with per share amounts for the year

NOTE 22SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

James Ousley certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of SAVVIS Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rulesl3a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

By /s/ JamesE Ousley

James Ousley

Chief Executive Officer principal executive officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors
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EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Gregory Freiberg certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of SAVVIS Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rulesl3a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

By /5/ Gregory Freiberg

Gregory Freiberg

Chief Financial Officer principal financial officer and principal accounting officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned the Chief Executive Officer of SAVVIS Inc the Company hereby certifies that

to his knowledge on the date hereof

the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31 2010 filed on the

date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission the Report fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Date March 2011

By /s/ James Ousley

James Ousley

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors

Savvs no 87



EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned the Chief Financial Officer of SAVVIS Inc the Company hereby certifies that
to his knowledge on the date hereof

the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31 2010 filed on the
date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission the Report fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company

Date March 2011

By Is Gregory Freiberg

Gregory Freiberg

Chief Financial Officer
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